
AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
February 1, 2022, Regular Meeting  
February 1, 2022, Closed Session 
 
 
 

  













AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 15, 2022, AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
  





AGENDA ITEM 4: 

WATAUGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY ANNUAL REPORT 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Ms. Monica Caruso, County Librarian, will present the Watauga County Public Library Annual 
Report.   
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
 
  





























AGENDA ITEM 5: 

WATAUGA COUNTY SCHOOLS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) AND LOTTERY 
FUNDS REQUEST 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Ly Marze, Watauga County Schools Director of Finance, will request the release of $300,000 
and $685,000 funds from the State Education Lottery Fund and the County’s CIP reserve, 
respectively.   The projects are attached. 
 
Board approval is required to release the funds as requested.     
 
 
 
  





















AGENDA ITEM 6: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE MATTERS 
A. Mobile Radio Purchase Request 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
 
Major Redmon, Watauga County Sheriff's Office, will request to purchase seven (7) new Motorola 
APX hand held dual band radios.   The cost per radio is $8,926.65 for a total cost of $62,486.55.  
Two (2) of the seven (7) radios will be paid for by the County’s insurance company.  Adequate 
funds are included in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 budget to cover the remaining five (5) radios.   
 
Board action is required to authorize the purchase from Motorola Solutions for seven (7) new 
Motorola APX hand held dual band radios in the amount of $62,486.55. 
 
 
 
 
 
  









AGENDA ITEM 6: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE MATTERS 
B. Radar Purchase Request 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Major Redmon will request approval to accept a grant from the North Carolina Crime Commission  
for twelve (12) new Kustom Eagle 2 speed radars in the amount of $19,140. No county match is 
required for the grant.   
 
Board approval is requested to accept the grant from the North Carolina Crime Commission and 
award Kustom Signals, Inc. the contract for twelve (12) new Kustom Eagle 2 speed radars in the 
amount of $19,140.   
 
 
 
 
  









AGENDA ITEM 7: 

PROJECT ON AGING MATTERS 
A. Additional Funds and Revised Allocation of FY 2022 Home & Community Care Block 

Grant (H&CCBG) Funds 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  
 
Ms. Angie Boitnotte will request the Board revise the original allocation of the Home and 
Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG).  The FY 22 allocation was $294,548, which required 
a local match of $32,728.  The Project on Aging received additional H&CCBG funds with the final 
allocation of $313,642 (+$19,094) which required a local match of $34,849 (+$2,121).  The local 
match is present in the current budget.     
 
Board action is required to approve the revised Home and Community Care Block Grant 
(H&CCBG) as presented in the packet.   
 
 
  









AGENDA ITEM 7: 

PROJECT ON AGING MATTERS 
B. Acceptance of the FY 2022 Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers Act 

(MIPPA) Grant/Contract 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Angie Boitnotte, Project on Aging Director, will request the Board accept a Medicare 
Improvements for Patients and Providers Act (MIPPA) grant from the Seniors' Health Insurance 
Information Program (SHIIP).  The grant is in the amount of $4,007 with no local match required. 
 
Action is required to accept the MIPPA grant in the amount of $4,007 to expand low income 
subsidy outreach and supplies. 
 
 
 
 
 
  





































AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  
A. Monthly Collections Report 

  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Report and be 
available for questions and discussion. 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
  





AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  
B. Refunds and Releases 

 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Larry Warren will present the Refunds and Releases Reports.  Board action is required to 
accept the Refunds and Releases Reports. 
 
 
 
  





















AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  
C. Tax Lien Report 

 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Warren will review the Tax Lien Report.  The Tax Lien Report is available through the same 
link as the information packet.  Board action is requested to accept the report listing delinquent tax 
bills that are liens on real property and to authorize the advertisement of such liens. 
 
 
 
 
  





AGENDA ITEM 9: 

SOCIAL SERVICES LOW INCOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (LIEAP) FUNDS  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Tom Hughes, Social Services Director, will request the Board approve additional funding from 
the LIEAP. The original authorization was $200,000 with an increase of $117,623 for a total 
amount of $317,623. 
 
Board action is required to accept the additional funding in the amount of $117,623. 
 
 
 
 
 
  





mailto:Jasmyne.Simmons@dhhs.nc.gov








AGENDA ITEM 10: 

FINANCE MATTERS  
A. Proposed Audit Contract for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 

  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Watson will request the Board approve Fiscal Year 2021-22 audit contract and engagement 
letter with C. Randolph CPA, PLLC. The contract amount of $47,800 covers the annual audit.  
Adequate funds are available to cover the expenditure. 
 
Board approval is required to accept the contract with C. Randolph, CPA, PLLC for the County’s 
Fiscal Year 21-22 audit in the amount not to exceed $47,800. 
      
 
 
 
  



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 
 814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M     
 
 
 TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 FROM: Misty Watson, Finance Director 
 SUBJECT: C. Randolph CPA, PLLC Contract for FY 21-22  
 DATE: February 10, 2022 
 
 
Attached is a copy of the fiscal year 2021-22 audit contract and engagement letter with C. 
Randolph CPA, PLLC. The contract amount of $47,800 covers the annual audit.       
 
The funding for this contract is located in the Finance Department budget for FY 21-22. 
Contracts are required to be approved annually by the Local Government Commission 
and Board of Commissioners. 
 
Board approval is requested for a contract amount not to exceed $47,800 with C. 
Randolph, CPA, PLLC for the County’s Fiscal Year 21-22 audit. 





























Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to 
us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during 
the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and 
for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) 
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of 
fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees, 
grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government 
complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. Management is also responsible for 
taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements that we report. Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is 
management's responsibility to evaluate and monitor noncompliance with federal and State statutes, regulations, 
and the terms and conditions of federal and State awards; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are 
identified including noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on 
reported audit findings; and prepare a summa1y schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action 
plan. The summary schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review on October 31, 2021. 

You are responsible for identifying all federal and State awards received and understanding and complying with the 
compliance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards 
(including notes and noncash assistance received) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance. You agree to include 
our report on the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards in any document that contains and indicates 
that we have reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards. You also agree to include the 
audited financial statements with any presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards that 
includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter 
that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (2) you believe the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, 
including its form and content, is stated fairly in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (3) the methods of 
measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the 
reasons for such changes); and ( 4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying 
the measurement or presentation of the schedule of expenditmes of federal and State awards. 

You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementaty information, which we have been engaged 
to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our report on 
the supplementary information in any document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the 
supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the 
supplementary information that includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in 
the written representation letter that ( 1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in 
accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly 
presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those 
used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us 
any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementa1y 
information. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial 
audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit 
Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address 
significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, 
or studies. You are also responsible for providing management's views on our current findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for 
providing that information. 



With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published 
electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, 
therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider the consistency of other 
information in the electronic site with the original document. 

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements, schedule of expenditures 
of federal and State awards, and related notes, and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to 
acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements, 
schedule of expendih1res of federal and State awards, and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved 
the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, and related notes prior to their 
issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by 
designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; 
evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them. 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 

We understand that your employees will locate any documents selected by us for testing. 

At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection Form that 
summarizes our audit findings. It is management's responsibility to electronically submit the reporting package 
(including financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, summa1y schedule of prior 
audit findings, auditor's reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit 
clearinghouse. We will coordinate with you the electronic submission and certification. The Data Collection Form 
and the reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor's 
reports or nine months after the end of the audit period. 

We will provide copies of our reports to Watauga County; however, management is responsible for distribution of 
the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and 
confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of C. Randolph CPA, PLLC, and constitutes 
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate 
individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to the Local Govenunent Commission or 
its designee, a federal or State agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability 
Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight 
responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be 
provided under the supervision of C. Randolph CPA, PLLC, personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide 
copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to 
distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other govermnental agencies. 

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release 
date or for any additional period requested by the Local Government Commission. If we are aware that a federal or 
State awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) 
contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

We expect to begin our audit in early September and to issue our reports no later than October 31, 2021. Cynthia 
D. Randolph is the engagement CPA and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the reports. 

Our fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report reproduction, 
word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross fee, including expenses, 
will not exceed $47,800. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable 
on presentation. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, om engagement will be deemed to have been 
completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report(s). You will be 
obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimbmse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of 
termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that 
unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessa1y, we 
will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incm the additional costs. 



You have requested that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review report and any 
subsequent reports received during the contract period. Accordingly, om 2018 peer review report accompanies this 
letter. 

Our audit engagement ends on delivery of our audit report. Any follow-up services that might be required will be 
a separate, new engagement. The terms and conditions of that new engagement will be governed by a new, specific 
engagement letter for that service. 

We appreciate the opp01tunity to be of service to Watauga County and believe this letter accurately summarizes the 
significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us lmow. If you agree with the terms of 
our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us . 

Ve1y truly yours, 

Cynthia D. Randolph 

CPA 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Watauga County. 

Management signature: 

Title: 

Governance signatme: 

Date: 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner 
rectuired by the local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 

cl~}ty~ 



• Koonce, Wooten & Haywood, LLP 
CEITTIAED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Report on the Firm's System of Quality Control 

To the Owner of C. Randolph CPA, PLLC and the 
Peer Review Committee, North Carolina Association 

Of Certified Pubiic Accountants 

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing p1'actice of C. Randolph CPA, PLLC (the 
firm) in effect for the year ended October 31, 2018. Our peer review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for 
Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants (Standards). 

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review as described 
in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also includes an explanation of how 
engagements identified as not performed or reported in conformity with applicable professional standards, if any, are 
evaluated by a peer reviewer to detennine a peer review rating. 

Firm's Responsibility 

The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm with reasonable 
assmance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. The 
firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate engagements deemed as not performed or reported in 
conformity with professional standards, when appropriate, and for remediating wealmesses in its system of quality control, 
if any. 

Peer Reviewer's Responsibility 

Om responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the firm's compliance 
therewith based on our review. 

Required Selections and Considerations 

Engagements selected for review included an engagement performed under Government Auditing Standards and an audit 
of an employee benefit plan. 

As pru.t of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if applicable> in 
determining the nature and extent of our procedures. 

Opinion 

In ow· opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of C. Randolph CPA, PLLC in effect 
for the year ended October 31, 2018, has been suitably designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable 
assurance of performing and repotting in conformity with applicable professional standru.·ds in all material respects. Firms 
can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail. C. Randolph CPA, PLLC has received a peer review rating 
of pass. · 

December 4, 2018 

Raleigh 
4060 Barrett Drive 
Post Office Box 17806 
Ralelgh, North Carolina 27619 

919 782 9265 
919 783 8937 FAX 

Durham 
3500 Westgate Drive 
Suite 203 
Durham, North Carolina 27707 

919 354 2584 
919 489 8183 FAX 

Koonce, Wooten & Haywood, LLP 

Pittsboro 
579 West Street 
Post Office Box 1399 
Pittsboro, North Carollna 27312 

919 542 6000 
919 542 5764 FAX 





AGENDA ITEM 10: 

FINANCE MATTERS  
B. Proposed Office of State Budget and Management (OSBM) Conflict of Interest Policy 

  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The County was awarded State Construction Infrastructure Funds (SCIF) grants for several 
projects in the County.  As part of the award the County is required to adopt a Conflict of Interest 
Policy.   
 
Board action is required to adopt the attached Conflict of Interest Policy as presented. 
      
 
 
 
  



                  W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 
   814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  -  Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M     
 
 
 TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 FROM: Misty Watson, Finance Director 
 SUBJECT: Conflict of Interest Policy    
 DATE: February 8, 2022 
 

The Office of State Budget and Management (OSBM) has released requirements regarding 
disbursement of State funds and adopting a policy addressing conflicts of interest that may 
arise involving management employees and members of its Board of Commissioners.  The 
policy shall address situations in which any of these individuals may directly or indirectly 
benefit, except as the grantee's employees or Commissioners of its board or other governing 
body, from the grantee's disbursing of State funds, and shall include actions to be taken by the 
grantee or the individual, or both, to avoid conflicts of interest and the appearance of 
impropriety. 
 
The attached Conflict of Interest Policy is recommended for adoption as it is compliant with 
the OSBM. 

 
 
  . 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 

FOR THE DISBURSEMENT OF FEDERAL OR STATE FUNDS 
 
 
SECTION I: Purpose  

 
This Conflict of Interest Policy for the Disbursement of Federal or State Funds is designed to maintain 
public confidence in the integrity of the government and in the responsible exercise of the trust 
conferred upon elected officials and employees by the people. This policy will help elected officials 
and employees identify situations that present potential conflicts of interest and avoid the appearance 
of impropriety in the disbursement of Federal or State Funds, in accordance with NCGS 143C-6-
23(b). The County of Watauga hereby adopts a procedure that, if observed, will allow a transaction to 
be treated as valid and binding even though an elected official or management employee has or may 
have a Conflict of Interest with respect to said transaction. In the event there is a conflict between the 
requirements and the procedures prescribed herein and those in federal or state law, the federal or 
state law shall control.  

 
SECTION II: Conflict of Interest Defined  
 

For purposes of this policy, the following circumstances shall be deemed to create Conflicts of 
Interest: 

 
a) A Commissioner is related to another Commissioner; 
b) A Commissioner is related to an employee; 
c) A Commissioner is also an employee; 
d) An employee in a supervisory capacity is related to another employee whom he/she 

supervises; 
e) A Commissioner or employee receives payment from the County of Watauga for any 

contract, subcontract, goods, or services other than as part of his/her regular job 
responsibilities or as reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred as provided in the 
bylaws and board policy; 

f) A Commissioner or employee is a member of the governing body of a contributor to the 
County of Watauga; 

g) A Commissioner or employee may have personal, financial, professional, or political gain at 
the expense of the County of Watauga;  

h) A Commissioner or employee directly or indirectly solicits, accepts, or receives any gift 
having greater than nominal or insignificant value under circumstances in which it could 
reasonably be inferred that the gift was intended or could reasonably be expected to 
influence the Commissioner or employee in the performance of his or her duties, provided 
that lawful political contributions shall not be considered as gifts under the provisions of this 
policy; or 

i) A Commissioner or employee engages in activities that may cause a loss of public credibility 
in the County of Watauga or create a public impression of impropriety. 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
John Welch, Chairman 
Billy Kennedy, Vice-Chairman 
Carrington Pertalion 
Larry Turnbow 
Charlie Wallin 

COUNTY MANAGER 
Deron T. Geouque 

 
COUNTY ATTORNEY 

Anthony di Santi 
 
 

Administration Building, Suite 205 ● 814 West King Street ● Boone, North Carolina 28607 

Telephone 828-265-8000 
TDD 1-800-735-2962 
Voice 1-800-735-8262 

County of Watauga 



 
SECTION III: Definitions  
 

A. A Conflict of Interest is any circumstance described in Section II of this Policy. 
B. A Responsible Person is any person serving as a member of the Board of Commissioners, a 

committee member, or as an employee of The County of Watauga. 
C. A Family Member is a spouse, domestic partner, parent, child, or spouse of a child, brother, 

sister, or spouse of a brother or sister, of a Responsible Person. 
D. A Contract or Transaction is any agreement or relationship involving the sale or purchase of 

goods, services, or rights of any kind, the providing or receipt of a loan or grant, or the 
establishment of any other type of pecuniary relationship.  

 
SECTION IV: Procedures 
 

A. Disclosure: Before board or committee action on a Contract or Transaction involving the 
selection, award, or administration of a procurement transaction in which federal or state funds 
are used in which a Conflict of Interest exists, a County Commissioner or committee member 
having a Conflict of Interest who attends the meeting shall disclose all facts material to the 
Conflict of Interest. Such disclosure shall be reflected in the minutes of the meeting. A County 
Commissioner or committee member who plans not to attend a meeting at which he or she has 
reason to believe that the board or committee will act to select, award, or administer a 
procurement transaction in which federal or state funds are used and that he or she has a Conflict 
of Interest shall disclose to the chair of the meeting all facts material to the Conflict of Interest. 
The chair shall report the disclosure at the meeting and the disclosure shall be reflected in the 
minutes of the meeting. Responsible Persons who are not members of the Watauga County 
Board of Commissioners or committee members or who have a Conflict of Interest with respect to 
a Contract or Transaction which is not the subject of board or committee action, shall disclose to 
the Chair or the Chair’s designee any Conflict of Interest that such Responsible Person has with 
respect to said Contract or Transaction. Such disclosure shall be made as soon as the Conflict of 
Interest is known to the Responsible Person. The Responsible Person shall refrain from any 
action that may affect The County of Watauga’s participation in such Contract or Transaction. 

a. In the event it is not entirely clear that a Conflict of Interest exists, the individual with the 
potential conflict shall disclose the circumstances to the Chair or the Chair’s designee, 
who shall determine whether there exists a Conflict of Interest that is subject to this 
policy. 

B. Abstention: A person who has a Conflict of Interest shall not participate in the discussion of the 
selection, award, or administration of a procurement transaction in which federal or state funds 
are used, except to disclose material facts and to respond to questions. Such person shall not 
attempt to exert his or her personal influence with respect to the matter, either at or outside of the 
meeting. A person who has a Conflict of Interest with respect to a Contract or Transaction 
involving the selection, award, or administration of a procurement transaction in which federal or 
state funds are used that will be voted on at a meeting may not vote on the Contract or 
Transaction. Such person’s ineligibility to vote shall be reflected in the minutes of the meeting.  

C. Sanctions: Existence of a Conflict of Interest shall render a Contract or a Transaction voidable 
unless full disclosure of personal interest is made to the Board of Commissioners and such 
transaction was approved by the Board in full knowledge of such interest. The disinterested 
Commissioners are authorized to impose by majority vote other reasonable sanctions as 
necessary to recover associated costs against a Commissioner, committee member, or employee 
for failure to disclose a Conflict of Interest as described in Section II or for any appearance of a 
Conflict of Interest. Appeal from sanctions described herein shall be prescribed by law in those 
courts of the State of North Carolina with jurisdiction over both the parties and the subject matter 
of the appeal. In the event that the County of Watauga has incurred costs or attorney fees as a 
result of legal action, litigation, or appeal brought by or on behalf of an interested Commissioner, 
committee member, or employee due to a Conflict of Interest and consequent sanctions and in 
the event that the County of Watauga prevails in such legal action, litigation, or appeal, the 
County of Watauga shall be entitled to recover all of its costs and attorney’s fees from the 
unsuccessful party. 



 
SECTION V: Confidentiality 
 

Each Responsible Person shall exercise care not to disclose confidential information acquired in 
connection with such status or information the disclosure of which might be adverse to the 
interests of The County of Watauga. Furthermore, a Responsible Person shall not disclose or use 
information relating to the business of The County of Watauga for the personal profit or 
advantage of the Responsible Person or a Family Member. 

 
SECTION VI: Review of Policy 
 

A. Each new Responsible Person shall be required to review a copy of this Policy and to 
acknowledge in writing that he or she has done so. 

B. This policy shall be reviewed annually by each member of the Board of Commissioners, each 
committee member, and each management employee.  

C. Any changes to the policy shall be communicated immediately to all Responsible Persons. 
 
 
 
Adopted this the 15th day of February, 2022 

 
WATAUGA COUNTY 

 
      By:  _______________________________ 
       John Welch, Chairman 
ATTEST:      Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 
_________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 





AGENDA ITEM 10: 

FINANCE MATTERS  
C. Proposed Grant Project Ordinance Establishment and Maintenance of OSBM State 

Capital Infrastructure Fund 
  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Watson will present the project ordinance for the establishment and maintenance of OSBM 
state capital infrastructure funds.   
 
Board action is required to approve the project ordinance as presented.       
 
 
 
  



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
WATAUGA COUNTY 

 
Watauga County Grant Project Ordinance  

Establishment and Maintenance of OSBM State Capital 
Infrastructure Fund 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Watauga County Board of Commissioners, pursuant to Section 13.2 
of Chapter 159 of the general statutes of North Carolina, the following Grant Project Ordinance is 
hereby adopted: 
 
Section 1.  The ordinance is to establish a budget for projects to be funded by the Office of State 
Budget and Management State Capital Infrastructure Funds (SCIF).  The Finance Director is 
hereby directed to account for all SCIF receipts by means of a grant project fund established 
pursuant to Part 2 of Article 3 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes.  Funds from the SCIF may 
be expended only for those authorized in the SCIF directed grants and in accordance with 
subsequent guidance from the OSBM and the General Assembly.  
  
Section 2.  The Grant Project Ordinance expires on December 31, 2026, or when all the SCIF 
funds have been obligated and expended by the County, whichever occurs sooner. 
 
Section 3.  The following anticipated revenues and appropriations are hereby adopted for the SCIF 
Grant Project Fund: 
 

OSBM  SCIF       $662,500 
Total revenues     $662,500 
 
Reserve for SCIF Authorized Expenditures  $662,500 
Total expenditures     $662,500 

 
Section 4. The Finance Director is hereby directed to maintain sufficient specific detailed 
accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the grantor agency and the grant agreements. 
 
Section 5.  Copies of this grant project ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk of the Governing 
Board, to the Budget Officer and to the Finance Director for direction in carrying out this project. 
 
ADOPTED this 15th day of February, 2022.  
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       John Welch, Chairman 
       Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle 
Clerk to the Board 
 



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 
A. Proposed Sampson Tower Lease & VIPER Lease 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, will request the Board approve a lease with the State 
of North Carolina for the Sampson Tower site.  The State will utilize the site for VIPER 
communications and be responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of the equipment and tower.  
 
Board approval is required to execute the lease with the State of North Carolina for the Sampson 
Tower site for VIPER communications.      
 
 
 
 
 
  



THIS LEASE DOES NOT BECOME EFFECTIVE UNTIL EXECUTED 
BY THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
LEASE AGREEMENT 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (hereinafter "Lease"), made and entered into as of the last 
date set forth in the notary acknowledgements below, by and between, the COUNTY OF 
WATAUGA, a body politic and corporate, hereinafter referred to as "Lessor"; and the STATE OF 
NORTH CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate, hereinafter referred to as "Lessee"; (Lessor 
and Lessee are each individually referred to herein as a "Party" and collectively referred to herein as 
the "Parties"); 

WITNESS ETH: 

THAT WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Public Safety, Division of Law 
Enforcement, State Highway Patrol, has requested and approved the execution of this instrument 
herein specified; and, 

WHEREAS, authority to approve and execute this lease agreement was delegated to the 
Department of Administration by Resolution adopted by the Governor and Council of State on the 
9th day of January 2018; and, 

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto have mutually agreed to the terms of this Lease Agreement 
as hereinafter set out. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the Premises, as described herein, and the 
promises and covenants contained in the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, Lessor does 
hereby rent, lease and demise unto Lessee for and during the term and under the terms and 
conditions hereinafter set forth, those premises with all rights, privileges and appurtenances thereto 
belonging, 

The terms and conditions of this lease are as follows: 

I. Premises. The "Premises" shall consist of approximately .02 acres of land located at 1432 
Sampson Road, Boone, Watauga County, North Carolina, with GPS coordinates N 36° 09' 15.91 ", 
W 81° 36' 10.08", (the "Site"), for the Lessee to construct a 180' communications tower (the 
"Tower") along with an equipment building (the "Building") and being more particularly 
described in the construction documents prepared by Engineering Tower Solutions, PLLC, 
Site Name: AHO, Site Number: HP-1382, dated 04/16/2021, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein as Exhibit A. 

2. Term. The initial term of this Lease shall be for a period often (10) years, commencing 
on the I'' day of February 2022 and terminating on the 31'' day of January 2032. The Lease may 
be automatically renewed for two (2) additional ten (I 0) year periods. 

SPO# 95-00081 Page 1of11 



3. Rent. Lessee shall pay to Lessor as rental for the Premises, the sum of ONE DOLLAR 
($1.00) for the Term. 

4. Equipment and Use. Lessee shall use the Premises for the purpose of installing, operating, 
maintaining, adding, repairing, and replacing antenna, microwave dishes, transmission lines, cables, 
wires, receivers, repeater(s), generator(s), transmitter(s), transfer switch( es), waveguides, batteries, 
fencing and other accessories necessary to support its communications system (all such equipment 
whether located on the Tower or in the Building being collectively referred to herein as the 
"Communications Equipment"). Lessee intends to primarily use the Communication Equipment to 
support its Voice Interoperable Plan for Emergency Responders ("VIPER"). Lessee shall not use 
or knowingly permit any part of the Premises to be used for any unlawful purpose, nor for any 
purpose or in any manner which is in violation of any present or future Federal, State or local 
goverrunental laws or regulations, or which will constitute a public or private nuisance, nor for any 
business, use, or purpose deemed disreputable or extra hazardous. Lessee agrees that the use and 
operation of any Communications Equipment shall be consistent with the quiet use, eajoyment, 
and occupancy of Lessor. 

5. Fixtures. Lessor agrees that the Communications Equipment and any other items belonging 
to the Lessee shall remain property of the Lessee and shall not be, become, or deemed by Lessor 
to be fixtures upon the Premises. 

6. Maintenance I Utilities. Lessee shall be responsible for the maintenance and operation of 
the Building and its Communications Equipment, including, but not limited to all utility charges 
attributable to Lessee's use of the Premises. Lessee shall repair at its own expense damage to the 
Building and Communications Equipment, which is the result of Lessee's use of the Premises 
except if such cost arises out of the negligent or wrongful acts or omissions of Lessor, its 
contractors or agents. 

7. Condition of Tower. Subject to other provisions contained in this Lease, Lessee, at its sole 
cost, except if such cost arises out of a negligent or wrongful acts or omissions of Lessor, its 
employees or agents, shall maintain and repair the Tower, including, without limitation, the Tower 
lighting system and markings and the structural integrity of the Tower. Installation, maintenance 
and repair of the Tower must comply with all State and Federal, ordinances, rules and regulations, 
applied in a manner consistent with standard industry practices. Such duties include, without 
limitation, but subject to the other provisions contained in this Lease, the maintenance of 
appropriate records and notifications to the FAA of any failure on Lessor's part and repairs and 
correction of the same. Subject to the terms of this Paragraph, Lessor assumes all responsibility 
for any fines, levies and /or other penalties imposed as a result of non-compliance with said 
requirements of said authorities. 

8. Goverrunental Aoorovals and Compliance. During the Term, Lessee shall comply with all 
State and Federal laws and regulations applicable to the Premises. Lessee shall obtain any 
necessary State or Federal licenses, or authorizations required for the installation of its 
Corrununications Equipment and shall comply with goverrunent regulations applicable to its 
operations, including those of the Federal Aviation Administration ("FAA") and the Federal 
Communications Commission ("FCC"). The Communications Equipment shall be designed, 

SPO# 95-00081 Page 2 of I I 



constructed, installed, maintained, and operated in compliance with the applicable rules and 
regulations of the FCC and good engineering practices. 

9. Access. Lessor hereby grants to Lessee for the Term an access and utility easement 
appurtenant to the Premises. Lessor warrants and represents that it has the right to convey the 
easement for ingress and egress hereby granted. Lessee shall be responsible for the cost ofrepairing 
any damage caused by Lessee's use of said easement. 

l 0. Insurance & Liability. 
(a) Lessor agrees that Lessee's decision to self-insure satisfies all insurance 

requirements of this Lease applicable to Lessee. 

(b) As between Lessor and Lessee, Lessee, subject to the terms of this Lease, will be 
primarily liable for the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of its agents and employees. As 
to third parties, Lessee is an immune sovereign and is not ordinarily subject to suit. However, 
Lessee has enacted Chapter 143, Article 31, of the North Carolina General Statutes (the "Tort 
Claims Act"), pursuant to which the Lessee may be liable for the torts of its officers and employees, 
within the terms of the Tort Claims Act, and accordingly, Lessee will be primarily liable for any 
claims within the coverage of the Tort Claims Act. No provision of this Lease shall be construed 
as constituting a waiver of Lessee's sovereign immunity under the Eleventh Amendment of the 
Constitution of the United States. 

( c) As between Lessor and Lessee, Lessor, subject to the terms of this Lease, shall be 
primarily liable for the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of its agent and employees. As to 
third parties, Lessor, solely to the extent indemnified by an insurance policy such that any amounts 
paid by Lessor to Lessee comes from insurance proceeds and not from Lessor's funds, agrees to 
save Lessee harmless from and against any and all loss, damage, claim, demand, liability, or 
expense, including reasonable attorney's fees, by reason of damage to any person( s) or property 
on or about the Premises, which may arise or be claimed to have arisen as a result of the use of the 
Premises by Lessee, its agents or employees, except where such loss or damage arises from the 
willful or negligent misconduct of Lessee, its agents or employees. 

11. Condition of Communications Equipment. Lessee has the right and responsibility to repair 
and maintain the Communication Equipment. Subject to other provisions contained in this Lease, 
Lessee, at its sole cost, except if such cost arises out of a negligent or wrongful acts or omissions 
of Lessor, its contractors or agents, shall maintain and repair the Communications Equipment and 
access to the Premises, if applicable thereto, such that Lessee may utilize the Premises for the 
purposes and to the extent herein permitted. Installation, maintenance and repair of the 
Communications Equipment must comply with all State and Federal ordinances, rules and 
regulations, applied in a manner consistent with standard industry practices. Such duties include, 
without limitation, but subject to the other provisions contained in this Lease, the maintenance of 
appropriate records and notifications to the FAA of any failure on Lessee's part and repairs and 
correction of the same. Subject to the terms of this Paragraph, Lessee assumes all responsibility 
for any fines, levies and /or other penalties imposed as a result of non-compliance with said 
requirements of said authorities. 

SPO# 95-00081 Page 3of11 



12. Security. Lessor agrees that the Building and Communications Equipment may be secured 
by a locked fence. 

13 Taxes. Lessee is exempt from taxation and therefore shall not pay any real or personal 
property taxes attributable to or assessed on, its interest in the Tower, the Building or the 
Communications Equipment. 

14. Right to Terminate. Lessee may terminate this lease, at its option, after giving not less than 
thirty (30) days' notice to Lessor, if: 

(a) Any governmental agency denies a request by Lessee for or revokes a permit, 
license or approval, which is required for Lessee to install or operate the Communications 
Equipment on the Premises; or 

(b) Lessee determines that technical problems or radio interference problems from 
other antennas or from nearby radio transmitting facilities, which problems cannot reasonably be 
corrected, preclude Lessee from using the Premises for its intended purpose; or 

(c) Utilities necessary for Lessee's use of the Premises are not available to the 
Premises; or 

( d) The Premises are damaged or destroyed to an extent, which prohibits or materially 
interferes with Lessee's use of the Premises; or 

( e) Lessee determines, in its sole discretion, that the Premises is no longer needed. 

15. Termination. Upon termination of this Lease, Lessee will peaceably surrender the Premises 
in as good order and condition as when received, reasonable use and wear and damage by fire, 
war, riots, insurrection, public calamity, by the elements, by act of God, or by circumstances over 
which Lessee had no control or for which Lessor is responsible pursuant to this Lease, excepted. 
It is understood and agreed that Lessee shall have the right to remove from the Premises the 
Communications Equipment and any other items belonging to Lessee. Lessee hereby agrees to 
repair to the reasonable satisfaction of Lessor any portion of the Premises damaged by the removal 
Communications Equipment. 

16. Title & Quiet Possession. Lessor agrees that Lessee, upon keeping and performing the 
covenants and agreements herein contained, shall at all times during the existence of this Lease 
peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the Premises free from the adverse claims of any 
person. Lessor represents and warrants to Lessee that Lessor has the full right to make this Lease 
and that Lessee shall have quiet and peaceful possession of the Premises throughout the Term. 

17. Holdover. Any hold over after the expiration of the Term, shall be construed to be a 
tenancy from month to month, and shall otherwise be on the terms and conditions herein specified, 
so far as applicable; however, either Party shall give not less than sixty (60) days written notice to 
terminate the tenancy. 

SPO# 95-00081 Page 4 of II 



18. Hazardous Materials. 
(a) For purposes of this Lease: (i) "Hazardous Material" or "Hazardous Materials" 

means and includes, without limitation, ( 1) solid or hazardous waste, as defined in the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act of 1980, or in any applicable state or local law or regulation, (2) 
hazardous substances, as defined in the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation 
and Liability Act of 1980 ("CERCLA"), or in any applicable state or local law or regulation, (3) 
gasoline, or any other petroleum product or by-product, (4) toxic substances, or rodenticides, as 
defined in the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act of 1975, or in any applicable 
state or local law or regulation, as each such Act, statute, or regulation may be amended from time 
to time; (ii) "Release" shall have the meaning given such term, in Environmental Laws, including, 
without limitation, CERCLA; and (iii) "Environmental Law" or "Environmental Laws" shall mean 
"Super Fund" or "Super Lien" law or any other federal, state, or local statute, law, ordinance, or 
code, regulating, relating to or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning any 
Hazardous Materials as may now or at any time hereafter be legally in effect, including, without 
limitation, the following, as same may be amended or replaced from time to time, and all 
regulations promulgated and officially adopted thereunder or in connection therewith: Super Fund 
Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 ("SARA"); the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 ("CERCLA"); The Clean Air Act ("CAA"); 
the Clean Water Act ("CWA"); the Toxic Substance Control Act ("TSCA"); the Solid Waste 
Disposal Act ("SWDA"), as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act ("RCRA"); 
the Hazardous Waste Management System; and the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 
("OSHA"). All obligations and liabilities arising under this Paragraph 17 which arise out of events 
or actions occurring prior to the expiration or termination of this Lease shall survive the assignment 
of this Lease and the expiration, termination, cancellation or release of record of this Lease. 

(b) Lessee agrees that it will conduct its activities on the Premises and the Site in 
compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws. As between Lessor and Lessee, Lessee, 
subject to the terms of this Lease and to the extent permitted by the Tort Claims Act, will be 
primarily liable for the existence or discovery of any Hazardous Materials on the Premises and the 
Site or for the migration of any Hazardous Materials to other properties or for the release of any 
Hazardous Materials into the environment in violation of applicable Environmental Laws, arising 
solely from Lessee's use of the Premises. Lessor represents warrants and agrees that it has in the 
past and during the term of this Lease will conduct its activities on the Site in compliance with all 
applicable Environmental Laws and that the Site is free of Hazardous Materials as of the date of 
this Lease. Lessor shall be responsible for, and promptly conduct any investigation and 
remediation as required by any Environmental Law or common law, of all spills or other release 
of Hazardous Materials on the Site, not caused solely by Lessee, that have occurred in the past or 
which may occur during the Term. To the extent permitted by applicable law, Lessor agrees to be 
liable and hold Lessee harmless from and against any and all liens, demands, defenses, suits, 
proceedings, disbursements, liabilities, losses, litigation, damages, judgments, obligations, 
penalties, injuries, costs, expenses (including, without limitation, attorneys' and experts' fees) and 
claims of any and every kind whatsoever paid, incurred, suffered by, or asserted against Lessee 
with respect to, or as a direct or indirect result of the violation of any Environmental Laws 
applicable to the Site, caused by or within the control of Lessor. 

SPO# 95-00081 Page 5of11 



19. Availability of Funds. Lessor and Lessee agree and understand that the continuation of 
this Lease for the Term, is dependent upon and subject to the appropriation, allocation or 
availability of funds for this purpose to the agency of Lessee responsible for payment of rent or 
maintenance and operation of the Communications Equipment. Lessor and Lessee also agree that 
in the event the agency of Lessee or that body responsible for the appropriations of said funds, in 
its sole discretion, determines, in view of its total local operations that available funding for the 
payment of rent or maintenance and operation of the Communications Equipment are insufficient 
to continue the operation of its local operations on the Premises, it may choose to terminate this 
Lease by giving Lessor written notice of said termination, and this Lease shall terminate 
immediately without any further liability to Lessee. 

20. Assignment and Subletting. Lessee shall not assign this Lease without the prior written 
consent of Lessor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Lessee, in its 
reasonable discretion, shall have the right to sublet the Premises in whole or in part. 

21. Prohibition on Gifts. North Carolina General Statute § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 
prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any employee of Lessee of any gift from anyone with a 
contract with Lessee, or from any person seeking to do business with Lessee. By execution of this 
Lease, Lessor attests, for its entire organization, including its employees or agents, that it is not 
aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted, or promised by any employees of its 
organization. 

22. Modification. No modification of any provision hereof and no cancellation or surrender 
hereof shall be valid unless made in writing and signed and agreed to by both Parties. 

23. Binding Effect. Subject to the provisions herein, this Lease shall extend to and bind the 
Parties and their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns. 

24. Applicable Law. This Lease shall be governed by, construed under and interpreted and 
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of North Carolina, regardless of conflict of law 
principles. 

25. Effect of Waiver. The failure of either Party to insist in any instance upon strict 
performance of any of the terms and conditions set forth in this Lease shall not be construed as a 
waiver of the same in any other instance. 

26. Complete Agreement. This Lease represents the entire agreement between the Parties 
covering everything agreed upon or understood in this transaction. There are no oral promises, 
conditions, representations, understandings, interpretations or terms of any kind as conditions or 
inducements to the execution hereof or in effect between the Parties. 

27. Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Lease shall for 
any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality 
or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof and this Lease shall be construed as 
if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 

SPO# 95-00081 Page 6 of II 



28. Construction. No provision of this Lease shall be construed against or interpreted to the 
disadvantage of any Party by any court or other governmental or judicial authority by reason of 
such Party's having or being deemed to have prepared or imposed such provision. 

29. Interpretation. The use of headings, captions and numbers in this Lease is solely for the 
convenience of identifying and indexing the various provisions in this Lease and shall in no event 
be considered otherwise in construing or interpreting any provision in this Lease. Feminine or 
neuter pronouns shall be substituted for those of the masculine form, and the plural may be 
substituted for the singular number in any place or places herein in which the context may require 
such substitution or substitutions. 

30. Terms. Capitalized terms used in this Lease shall have the meanings ascribed to them at 
the point where first defined, irrespective of where their use occurs, with the same effect as if the 
definitions of such terms were set forth in full and at length every time such terms are used. 

31. Authority. Each person executing this Lease on behalf of Lessor does hereby represent 
and warrant that, if applicable: (a) Lessor is duly organized and in good standing in the State of its 
organization and, if different, qualified to do business and in good standing in the State of North 
Carolina, (b) Lessor has full lawful right and authority to enter into this Lease and to perform all 
of its obligations hereunder, and ( c) each person signing this Lease on behalf of Lessor is duly and 
validly authorized to do so. 

32. Counterparts. This Lease may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original, and all of such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

3 3. Memorandum of Lease for Recording. At the request of either Party, Lessor and Lessee 
shall execute a memorandum of this Lease for recording in the public records at the requesting 
Party's sole cost and expense. The memorandum of Lease shall set forth the Parties, provide a 
description of the Site, specify the Term and incorporate this Lease by reference. 

34. Notices. All notices herein provided to be given, or which may be given by either Party to 
the other, shall be deemed to have been fully given when made in writing and deposited in the 
United States mail, certified and postage prepaid and addressed as follows: 

to Lessor: County of Watauga 
Attn: County Manager 
814 Kings Street 
Boone, North Carolina 28607 

to Lessee: North Carolina Department of Public Safety 
Attn: Lease Coordinator 
4701 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-4701 

with copy to: State Property Office 
Attn: Space Planning and Leasing Manager 
1321 Mail Service Center 

SPO# 95-00081 Page 7 of 11 



Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1616 

Nothing herein contained shall preclude the giving of such notice by personal service. The 
address to which notices shall be mailed as aforesaid to either party may be changed by written 
notice. 

[remainder of page intentionally left blank- signatures on following pages] 

SPO# 95-00081 Page 8of11 



IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, this Lease has been executed by the parties hereto, in 
duplicate originals, as of the last date set forth in the notary acknowledgements below. 

LESSOR: 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

By: ________________ _ 

Print Name: ____________ ~ 

Title: ----------------

ATTEST: 

Clerk (Seal) 

ST A TE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ______ _ 

I, ________________ , a Notary Public in and for the aforesaid 

County and State do hereby certify that personally came before 

me this day and acknowledged that he/she is Clerk of the COUNTY OF WA TAU GA and that by 

authority duly given and as an act of the COUNTY OF WATAUGA, the foregoing instrument was 

signed by _________________ , its _______ , attested by 

himself/herself as Clerk and sealed with the common seal. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and Notarial Seal, this the __ 

day of _________ , 2021. 

My Commission Expires: ____ _ 

SPO# 95-00081 

Notary Public 
Print Name: -----------

Page 9of11 



STA TE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF _____ _ 

LESSOR: 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

Tim Walton, Director 
State Property Office 
NC Department of Administration 

I, , a Notary Public in and for the aforesaid County and the 
State of North Carolina, do certify that Tim Walton, personally came before me this day and 
acknowledged that he is Director of State Property Office, Department of Administration, State of 
North Carolina, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the State has signed the foregoing 
instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and Notarial Seal, this the_ 
day of , 2022. 

Notary Public 

Print Name 
My Commission Expires: _________ _ 

SPO# 95-00081 Page JO of I I 



EXHIBIT A 

SPO# 95-00081 Page 11of11 



ALL l'l'ORKAND MATERIALS SHALL BE PERFORMED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE V11TH THE 
CURRENT EDf!lONS OF THE FOllOVl1NG CODES AS ADOPTED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNING 
AVIBORITIES NOTHING IN THESE PLANS IS TO BE CONSTRUED TO PERMIT WORK NOT 
C°"FORMlNC TO THE FOLLOWING CODES 

2018 N,C BUILDING CODE (201~ IBC WITH N.C.AMCNDMENTS) 

2'>18 N.C FIRE CODE (2015 IFC l"llTH N.C. AMENDMENTS) 

2018 N.C FUEL GAS CODE (2015 IFGC ...,TH NC, AMENDMENTS) 

2018 N.C MECHANICAL CODE (2015 IMC V11TH N_C_ AMENDMENTS) 

201& INTERNATIONAL PWM~NG CODE (2015 IPC Vl1TH N_C_ AMENDMENTS/ 

2018 INTERNATIONAL EXJSTING BUILDING CODE (2015 IEBC V11TH N,C. AMENDMENTS) 

201? N.C ELECTRICAL CODE (201? NEC) 

SITE NAME: 
AHO 

SITE NUMBER: 
HP-1382 
~& 

1432 ·SAMPSON RD 
BOONE, NC 28607 

LATITUDE & LONGITUDE: 
N 36° 09' 15.91", W 81° 36' 10.08" 

T-1 

1 OF2 

2 OF 2 

GN-1 GN-3 

GN-4 GN-7 

C-1.0 

C-1.1 

C-1.2 

C-1.3 

C-1.4 

C-2 

C-3 

C-4.1 

C-4.2 

C-4.3 

C-4.4 

C-4.5 

C-4.6 

E-1 

E-2 

E-3.1 

E-3.2 

E-4 

G·1 

G-2.1 G-2.3 

PROGRAM NUMBER: 
15876 

PROJECT NUMBER: 
21-22889-01A 

TITLE PAGE 

SURVEY 

SURVEY 

GENERAL NOTES I GENERAL NOTES Ill 

NC APPENDIX BI NC APPENDIX B IV 

OVERALL PROPERTY PLAN 

OVERALL SITE PLAN 

DETAILED SITE PLAN 

DIMENSIONED SITE PLAN 

PROPOSED GRADING PLAN 

TOWER ELEVATION 

ANTENNA SCHEDULE & LAYOUTS 

SHELTER DETAILS 

SHELTER FOUNDATION DETAILS 

GENERATOR DETAILS 

ICE BRIDGE DETAILS 

FENCE DETAILS 

GRADING DETAILS 

ELECTRICAL NOTES 

ELECTRICAL PLAN & DETAILS 

PANEL SCHEDULE "PP1 UTILITY" 

PANEL SCHEDULE "PP2 TECH" 

ONE-LINE DIAGRAM 

GROUNDING PLANS 

GROUNDING DETAILS 1-111 

& 

STRUCTURE TYPE· 

STRUCTURE OWNER: 

SITE NUMBER 

ANTENNA SITE REG. NO. 

STRUCTURE HEIGHT (AGL) 

OCCUPANCY TYPE 

STRUCTURE LATITUDE· 

STRUCTURE LONGITUDE· 

JURISDICTION: 

COUNTY· 

PARCEL ID 

GROUND ELEV. (AMSL) 

POWER PROVIDER: 

FISER PROVIDER 

SELF SUPPORT 

NORTH CAROLINA HIGHWAY 
PATROL 

HP-1382 

TBD 

180'± 

UTILITY & MISCELLANEOUS (U) 

N 36' 09' 15.91" {36.154420) 

w 81" 36' 10.08" {-81.602800) 

WATAUGA COUNTY 

WATAUGA 

2838155079000 

3719.7' 

TBD 

TBD 

PREPARED -BY 

~ 
~ 

ETS g.:q x=:; 
3227 WELLINGTON COURT 

RALEIGH, NC271115 
0-.~1~7112-2?10,t.91~1 

www.~--IYllCno.wm 

• ""-"""­
AHO 

01=21 I CONSTRUCTION 

0112912021 I CLIENT CDM>IENTS 

0211!ll2021 I CLIENT Cot<'MENTS 

3 03/1 lll2021 CUENT COMMENTS 

•o 

" ,, 
" •o 

O.V1u.>021 CLIENT COMMENTS 

IDRA'M'IBY:-~ICHECKEOBY AD-] 

SHEETTinE 

TITLE PAGE 

ISMEEU T-1-1~~~E~TR~V-~.~ I 



' 

PO
IN

T 
TO

 P
O

IN
T 

LA
ND

 S
UR

VE
YO

RS
 

Fi
rm

 L
ic

en
se

 N
um

be
r: 

C
-4

14
5 

10
0 

G
ov

er
no

rs
 T

ra
ce

, 
St

e.
 1

03
 

P
ea

ch
tre

e 
C

ity
, 

G
A 

30
26

9 
{p

) 
67

8.
56

5.
44

40
 (f

} 
67

8.
56

5.
44

97
 

(w
) 

p2
pl

s.
co

m
 



LEGAL DESCRIPTION SHEET 

20' /NGRESSEGRESS & unLJTY EASEMENT 

TOGETHER 'MTH A 2Q.fOOT r.IGRES5-EGRESS AND IJTlITY EASEMENT (LYING 10 FEET EACH 
SIDE OF CENTERl.JNE), LYlNG ANO BEf'IG IN BU£ RIDGE T~SHP. WATAUGA COUNT\', 
NO!ffi1 CARCll..""6.. AND BEr-IG A PORllON OF THE LANDS OF CARROU. NC PROPERTIES, ll.C, 
M; RECQ.C[)E[) IN DEED BOOK27, PAGE 393, WATAUGA COLMY RECORDS, ANO Bf.NG 
DESCRIBED BYTI-E FOll.OWING CENTERLINE DATA: 

TO FND TI-IE POINT Of BEGINMNG, C().IMENC£AT A 5%1NCH REBAR FOLA'ID AT A 
NORTI-rNESTm..Y PROPERTY ~ OF SAD LANDS, REBAR HAVING A GRID NORTI-1, 
NAD83, NORTI-1 CAROLINA.ZONE VALi.£ Of N; 885191.1603 £: 1231625.2952, ,6/jQ BEING 
FOUND SOIJl1i 39"36'00" WEST, 47.28 FEET FROM N'IOTI-lER SfojNCH REBAR FOUND ON A 
NORTt-M'ESTER1.Y PROPERlY Lit£ OF SAD LAN>S; THENCE ALONG A Tf:.t . .JNE, NORTH 
75"11'59" EAST, 12.84 fEET TO A f'()NT ON THE LEASE AREA; THENCE R\ffi!NG ALONG 
THE LEASE AREA, NORTH 40"2743" EAST, 9.24 FEET TO APOINT: TI-ENCE, SOIJl1i 
79"32'17" EAST, 30.26 FEfT TO APOINT; lHENCE, SOIJl1i 49"32'1/ EAST, 21.31 FEET TO 
A POINT; TliENCE, S0011i 40"27'43' WEST, 25.00 FEET TOA POJNT HAvr.IG GRID ~RTH. 
NA083, NORTH CAROLINA.ZONE VALUE Of N; 885163.1209 E: 1231673.4542, AND TI-IE 
TRt£ POINT OF BEGINNING; THEN:E LEAVING lliE LEASE AA£A ANO RlJtf'llNG, SOUTI1 
49"32'17' EAST, 49.64 fEETTO THE ENDll'fGAT A POINT ON TiiE CENTERUt£ OF S.WPSON 
R0>JJ (HAVING A 5Q.fOOT RIGfT-0'-WAY). 

BEAR1NGS NE BASED ON GRID NORlH, N.OD83, NORTH CAROLW. ZOt£. 

LEASE AREA 

ALL n-Lo\T TRACT OR PARCEL OF LANO, LYING ANO BEING IN BWE RIOGE 
TOWNSHIP, WATAUGA COLNTY, NOR!11 CAAOL.!N.'., AND BEINGA PORTION OF Tl-IE 
LANDS OF CARROLL NC PROPERTIES, LLC, AS RECORDEO IN OEED BOOK 27, 
P.-t.G.: 393, WATAUGA COUNTY RECORDS, Aro BEING OESCRIBEDAS FOLLOWS: 

TO frlD lHE POINT OF BEQNNING, COMMENCE AT A Sfil-lNCH REBAA FOUND AT A 
NOFITttn£$TERL Y PROPERTY CORNER OF SAID LN()S, REBAR HAvtlG A GRID 
NORTH. f'Wl83. NORTl-I CAAOUNAZON.:: VALUE OF N: 885191.1603 E: 
1231625.2952, AND BEING FOl..L"lD SOUTH 39"36'00' WEST, 47.28 FEET FROM 
ANOTHER ~CH REBAR FOUND 00 A NORTliWESTERLY PROPERTY UNE OF 
S>JD L.NiDS; THENCE ALONG A TIE.UM:, NORTH 75'11"59" EAST, 12.84 FEET TO 
A POINT, AND THE TRUE POINT OF BEGlNNNG; T11ENCE RUNNING, Nomi 
40"27'43' EAST, 9.24 FEET TOA POINT; TI-IENCE, SOUTH 79"32'17'" EAST, 30.26 
FE£TT0 APQINT; THENCE. SOUTH 49"32'17' EAST. 21.31 FEET TO A POINT; 
TI-IENCE, SOUTH 40'27'43"WEST, 37.00 FEET TO APOINT; lHENCE, NORTI-1 
49'32"17' WEST, 25.64 FEET TO A PONT; ll£NCE, NORTI-1 I 9"32"1 T WEST, 
25.26 FEET TO A POINT ANO THE POINT OF BEGrlNING. 

BEARINGS ARE BASED 00 GRID NORT11, NA083, NORlli CAflOl.flA ZONE. 

~o TRACT CONTAJNS D.0326 ACRES (l,422 SQUARE FEEn, MORE OR LESS. 

[~fiiTWU)YiffiilJT---gm-TllD] 

en :;; 
r- c:: ~ :I 
.z O~s: ~ 
lii- >- .... ~O'lo:i 
~ 0 l..1..1 ¢Q;~tc •CL> t.:.uo.;::-
11: a:::~~('<);; 
• Q :::J E,O<§:! 
:ii- U'J~~b;;i;e 
~ ::2ut28 1-o:ii~~~-& z z :3c3~~~ 
I~ :5 ~§~~~ 

:\ TO ;o 

"'~"':::-; C) '.:'.\ Cl..r 
I 

\ " 2., 

~t-- & 
1)1\l:J\\S 

~ 
ETS 

... ~ """ .,,,,,,.. '"' II 877• YATU DR1YE. SUTE 150 
WEST-sTER. CO 80001 

AHO I SITE NO· 
HP-1382 

BUE~ TC1tmSIF, 
WATAl.J(;&.CCIU'm' NOlffi1~ I 

21 
'"' I 

O£C1(£[1 BY: .l<L 

N'f'flChtD: 0.-.u:R 

~TE: JNf.JJRf S. 2021 

P2P J06 I: 202009NC 



G
l m
 

z m
 ~ r z ~ m
 "' 

.~
 

.;.;:
 



~ 
G

l 
I '

 ' 
' '

 ' 
0 

m
 

n 
1il 

S!
 

S!
 

c;i
 

z 
' 

" ~
 I 

~ 
z 

m
 

~ 
~ ~

 L
, 

lo
 

~ r 

i 
z 

i 
0 

~ 
• 

.... 

! 
m

 
' 

(/
) 

~ 
=

 



~ 
~~ I •• ~E cg

~ 
"
>

 

! 
I~

 
~ 

\:: 
;e

:i: o"
 

I 
·~

 
~!i

l I "· ·' !' ~2 " I '·
 

~~
 

"
"
 

~-

I 
0, ,, 6g

 

~ 
~
~
 

>
O

 

~~
 

! 
i'i

d 
·~

 

' 
;i

ii
 

' '.
l~

 
£!

!: 
p 
-

• 
c
g

 
.• 

• 
p 

-' 
' 

~~
~~

 ~
g
~
~
 ~~~

 "
" 
' ~~

 ~ 
• " 

~
-

!!
 •

 ' ~ 
;m

• 
"'

 ~~
 

! 
~ 

lg
~~

 ~
~~

~ 
!2

~~
 ~ :;;

,. 
iii 

<>
 
~'

!:
 

~~
 
" 

~ 
o;:

;rn
~ 
IR

~~
 

j2
o

:o
 
,. 

~ 
~~

 ~
~
 

~ 

' 
r<

>
;:

::
1

-
;o

"
 

~~
 

oO
 

' •
 

• 
:i

~~
i 

;~
~ 
~~

~ 
~~

~ 
~ 

~ 
~~

 ~
i 

H
 

I i ~ 
~~

~~
 

2!
!:

~ 
g;;

i: 
§ 
§~

 g:
= 

r=a
 

' 
~~

~ 
:;i

~:;
; 

l i"i
2 

:;
::

~ 

I 
~~

" 
~§

 
~:;

:: 
3
:
~
"
o
 

~~
ii

i 
~:

:J
~ 

.c
o

 
: ~

! 
~·

 
" 

~i
:§

; 
i 

~~
 •• 

*~
! 
~~

~ 
ifi

i£
 

~·
 

~ 
.o;

:; 
~,'

;l 
~ 

! 
~
f
~
:
 

c<
>"

' "
!il

"' 
~:

=~
 

o
g

 
~ 

i::o
 ~
~ 

;!
 
' ~ 

~ 
:z

.Z
 r

n 
0 

';
' 

i~
 

' 
!i

l~
~£

 
~g

AA
 ~
~i

 
~~

~ 
~ ~

~ 
~
~
 

' 
.,

 :
• 
I 

• 
o
~
0
m 

z~
0
 
_i

il
z 

:i!
:ig

i 
I ~~

 
~~

 
\:lg

 
~:

g~
 

0 
-0

 
C

"
z
 

~ 
~~

 
! 

i 
~~

2 
~g

~ 
~~

~ 
~~

 
.. 

~i
'i

 
"
"
 :!

i:j
 

" 
5;

~i
 

gi
ll

~ 
:'.

:[!
j~ 

!!
· 8 

.. 
i 

~,
';

l 
~
~
 

~~ 
! 

~£
~:

= 
~~~

 i~
i 

~~
~ I 0 

~ 
~~

 ~
~ 

" 
6 

!
?
~
~
z
 

' 
~ 
~i

 
! 
• 

I 
"'

I'
!"

~ 
ill

~:;
:: 

.• 
"' 

gl
 

i I 
~~

~~
 

,';
l!J

-
:Z

O
:Jl

 

i 
~ 
~F

 '"
 
g
~
 

"'i
l'.:

; 
li!

o'
::,

; 
~
£
~
 

m
o 

~ 
~~

~ 
~~

~ 
~ 

~i
i:

: 
~
~
 

~i
ii

 
~~

~~
 

~~
~ 

iii
 !il

5 
~~

 

~ 
,..._

.,..,
 

"' 

"' 
' 

~ 
ii

;~
 

gc
;i!=

 
g

i 
~(

lf
n 

~ 
·~

 
,~

 
1\

~i
 

gm
 

ii!
".

,,
 

"'
 
~'

 
o

•O
 ' 

!;
 C

l!:!
 O

m
 

I 
~~

~~
 
~h 

n ~~
; 
! 

~ i
~ >m

 

~·
 

, 

I 
•• 

~~
 

' 
~~

g~
 

~
~
m
 

.. 
•
O

 

' 
!,

';
l~

 
~ 
~~

 ~
~ 

o
_

 

~~
il

l;
) 

~~
--

~8
 

~d
li

 ' 
~ 
~;

 
g

• 

~ 
' 

o
' 

£~
 

,,
~;

i;
 

...
. ;

; 
iL

-~
 

~~
 

.
,
~
.
 

~-~
~ 

!~
 

F!
o 

~ 
§ ~

~ 
~~

~~
 

·-
~ 

g 
' 

~~
 

~l
~I

~ 
g 

•o
 ~~

~ 
~~

?,
;g

g 
8
~
8
 I

 
I 

~
o
 

I 
<

' 
!'

J;
::

@~
~ 

:!i
~:!

i 
• •

 
if

~~
; 

;i
;~

 
;;:

.,-
<

 
~~i

!l:
i':

J! 
~~

~ 
" 

!;
:~

~~
 ! 
i, •;i

 · 
Z:

J!
m

m
 

_,
g_

, 

• ~
 

.-
£
"
m
~
~
 )

;l.
,£

 
~:

::
:~

~ 
,o

 <
 

0 

~ 
• £l

g 
§
~
'
i
i
 

Y:
'°

:»
"~

 
<>

OU
> 

! 
""

'r-
""

 
~~

~ 
.,,

<=
;o

j!>
 o
z
~
 

~~
~g

 ' ! 
m~

Y:
,!

;l
/;

l 
~~

::
::

 
£i

;i 
.... 

!il
~ 

~s
;>

J 
• 

~~
~-

g 
! 

i 
!il

;;!
ii!

 
• 

• 
~~

~ 
O

l 
0 

L 
Cl 

':!l 
zm

:v
_,

 

~~:
~~ 

i~!
 ~ , 

n
O

":
i: 

I 
:_

,~
;;

!~
 ' 

·~
i 

I 
~\:

!¥Y
: 

~~
~ 

~"
'r

8C
I 

::::
.o•

: 
a~

 ~!
il 
; ~ y:

~!
il

 
~~

~6
~ 
~;

~ 
i 

~~
~~

 
o
m
~
 
~~

~:
~ 
~~

~ 
§~

~~
 

' ~~
: 

"'
°"

'"
'o

 m
\ll

::l
 I ~ 

~ .,
p~

;;
! 

i~
~~

g 
~!

!§
 

g~
iS

'i
il

 
'i

?c
i~

 
;;

!:
~!

!!
> 
!!

o~
 

' 
"!

iri
i:.

. 
~i

~ 
~E

!:
»i

ti
 

~m
:J

!.
,,

9 
O
~
r
 
j 

l 
;~

~§
 

:J!
~it

i 
r;

:i
~£

~ 
~~

<:
:'

 

! i~
~ 

i~
i;

:>
~ 

Cl:
~~ 
• 

2 
~
~
r
 

.... 
.,,.

.,!
;>

"' 
~"

'\
!:

 ' 
!C

l: 
~ 

2:
::li

!: 
~~

~~
f,

l 
6~

6 
• 

m
; 

i
~
~
g
 

~ l
i~

~ 
m

Z
"!

 -
-1

r;o
 

i 
i~

~l
;;

 
~~

~ 
b~

g/
;l

~ 
~i

ll
d 

~ 
_
,
~
O
o
 

~ 
~:~

~~i
ii 

g
r
§
~
 

~ ~~
~ 

~ 
~8

~~
 

· 
zG

 
t:

:~
-"

~ 
~~

 
~:

~i
~ 

d:
:; 

~ 
f,

l~
:J

!~
 

~-~
~~~

 
~~

 
... 

:»
iii!

:! 
i 

~ii
i 

~ 

-
g 

c 
• 

:--
'!1

) 

~g
g i 

. 
~ 

~!
t 

~;;!
rill

;; 
~~

g;
e 

~"t
i~ 

"0
 ..,

.,, 
~ 

8 
_,<

>;
u-

< 
z
r 

n
o

 z
 

~.
--

15
 

f!
08

8~
"'

"i
fi

 
~~

 
~~

R2
 ~
~~

~ 
i~

 ~
 

'.
;l

o~
~ 

!t
=l
~£
 
i~

~§
~~

~~
 

;;
;;

~~
 :;

! 
~ 

~!
!!

~ 
~
~
 

::!
/ij

'"~
 

t"l
li(

~ 
'i

'~
.,

 
~
~
2
~
 

""
'"

 
-

.... 
.,, 

~ii
i 

it
-"

'"
'~

 
~:

:!
,,

 }
!"

' 
•
•
 o

 
j;

;~
~~

~!
jl

~Z
 

.!:
 -

t>
':l

 
m

!tm
 :

:!~
 

~~
i 

--
1'
.;
j~
~ 

rii:
J! 

~ 
~Q

~ 
0

0
 
~"

!i
i 

!il 
i 

~~
~£

 
Cl

"'
~~

"'
 

sn:
:i 

~ 
!il

"' 
,. 

;~
; 

~~
3~

 it
ig
~~
 .

. 
~
g
 

~~
 
§i

~§
 
~i

~'
 ~

 
~~

~:
Ef

ii
~z

 
~~

 
o~

~E
 

g'
i';

 
0 

!:
 .

.. 
Ill 

~~
~~

 
§~

~~
~~

 
~i

ll
~ 

i~
 
~=

~ 
~~

 
;u

~~
i!

j 
~:i

'i!
l 
• 

~~
i 

o-
<<

>"
 

~§
 
~~

~~
 
;m

~ 
' 

m
 :

J!
~!

il
 

;;!
:'.'

 
!i1 
~ 

iti 
0 

;:
!~

 
~~

~~
 
~
~
 

.... 
~ 
~ 

•
o

 
¥~

il
l~

 
~~

~ 
~ 

~~
~ 

z 
~;

;!
);

1 
r)

; 
!ii 

m
m

 
E:

 !
:!

P~
~ 

~!
ii

~ 

~~
~ 

~~
~~

 
~/;

l 
g 
~ 
~ 

;;;
iti 

~~
~~

 
8~

~ 
6 

"'$
:: 

~ 
z 

i!l 
•
o

 
zO

>
;t

l 
s
~
 
~~

~~
 
~~

~ 
~~

~ 
~ 
1
~
~
 

~:;
; 

"'
~"

 
~ 

c• 
~ 

0 
~ 

.
~
 

"~
;;

! 
!il 
g~

~ 
~~

 
~ ~

: 
~~

 
g;

::
~~

 
it

i"
'~

 
"
o

>
 

m
d

!f
r 

o
~
 

_;>
J 

l>
;o

C
: 

I 
9:

--1
" 

~
:
Q
~
 

~
£
 

i~:
1 ~

I~ 
:i

:§
l~

 
-"' 

z 
~
:
I
 

"'
"'

;'!
 

~1
~;

 
~:

s 
m~

~ 
~d

 
~~

!!
 

~ g
~~

 
~~

 
~.

 !
i1 

£§
 

rr_
::.

! 
~~

 
~ 

~ 
:"

~i
 
Q~

~ 
"'

ll'
;; 

0 
m

 

~·
 

' 
~;:

;~ 
' 

>
0

 
~~

 
~ 

~ 
<O

 
Z~

"V
,.

. 
;t

!O
"'

 
ii: 

~~
 

~~
 ~P!

f:i
ll 

:~
~ 

I 
~:

s!
f:

 
>

 
.... 
~
 

z:
:l 

:;: 
_;;: 

~ii 
6 

iii:
:: 

"
~
 

-< 
li 

o
' 

~
~
~
 .... 

g~
::

::
 

~~
 
~
Q
 

"'
 

O
o

 
>l

z~
~ 

~o
~ 

o
o

 

§ 
~~

 
!i

-"
~~

 
!f:

:J!
~ 

'"
 

~~
~~

 
~~

~ 
' 

o
O

 
i!l

\:: 
0

0
>

 
.. 

~ 
G

l 
! 

' '
 ' 

0 
! 

m
 

! 
' ~ 

I I 
ci'

 
z 

• 
! 

m
 

i i
 i 

z 
~ 

~ 
lo

 
r 

~ 
z 

~ 
~ 

! 
0 

! ~ 
! 

.... 
" 

g 
m

 
• 

I 
U

I 
~
 

i 
-

• 
!"

 II"'
 I 

iijl
~' 

~1·
 

H
 

·(
~"

 
..

, 
j 
~ 

1~ 
H

 
i'i

.,
£

 ! 
~~

:I
: 
i 

H
 1~1

~))
) 

1~
~ 

>
 

co
 il

l 
0 

m
 

"'"
 

,, . ~ l !
 



• 
i .

 . ;;
>

::
" 
. . 

"
"
 

0 
z 

c;)
' 

(
)
 

' 
z 

)>
 

~ 
!.

 
.,, .,, m

 
~ 

z 0 

I 
;;;:

 "' 
• • 

z <
 

t!l
lli

l ,_
., 

181
181

181
 

t
t
"
't

t
t
 

o
o

a
'o

o
o

 
oo

 

~'
I(

;'
;~

 
~ 

i 
D

D
 

>"
" 

" 
-

4: 

~ 
f 

0~
01
81
0 

[ 
D

 
~
~
 ~
 

D
O

D
 

D
D

 
s: 

~ >
 § 

D
 

D
 

..
 ..

 -
., 

~ 

!
!
 ~
 ' 
I~ 

H
 

u 
8 ~:

ii
 

~ 
~ 

0
"
 

' 
. 

~ 

"' D
 

, 

D
 

D
 f 

D
 

II i~~
>))1 

• 
8~1~

' 
Z1

• 
.,

, 
• 

)>
 1~

 
~
~
~
 t:

l 
.,

,,
g 

i 
.!.

 i 
z 
I 

n
~
~
 ~
 
~1

1t
O 

~"
'"

' 
l>

 
,,, .

 
II ~

61"
1 

... ~
"'

 



ii r • f %
 

n >
 J • ~ I 

! • 

z " > ""C
J 

""C
J 

m
 

z c ><
 

II
! =
 

' ~ 1 ' i ~ 

l • ~ 
~~
~~
~~
i 

<>
 

g ~~ 
r 

f 
~ 

n 
~ 

I 
f ! 

-' 
g 

I 
j' 

_§ 
i .I

 
' 

8 

l 
~~

 
~
 

a 
' 

'"
 

• 
c:

;;
 

~-

' 
• 

l!
: 

1 
j i

 J
 d 

~ 
~
~
 

• 
~
 
~~

 
' 

~ 
? 

0 

f 
~ 

~
~
 . ' 

~ 
~~

 
;'

 
~ 

g~
 

' 
~i 

l 
~ i 

' 
' 

i 
' 

~ 
.:;

 
~ 

' 
§ 

s 
~ 

~ ~ 
" 

~ 
t 

[ ' 
i 

1 
I 

~ § 
~ 

f-_
[6

1 
§ 

~ 
i 

~!
i 

oH
 t~i § 
~
 

-



~ 
~ 

~
~
 
i~

 
~ 

~ 
"· 

>
 

c 
~!

 
I"

 
~ 
r
-
g
-
-
-
-
~
~
 

~ 

i 
]' 

:r
"'

 
>
~
 i

{' 
r,,,

 "'
if

~,
.,

 

f 
c1

c§
 

~"
'~

 
-~

1~
:g

;~
 

c 

i l i
 

iii 
c 

c 
~~

 
>

 
~'.

§ ~
~ 

" 
ii
:~
. 

i-;_
 

"'r
 

1':
 
c
c
 

~
 

i5
 

""
v
[ 

?. 
:
o
:
c
~
z
 
~
z
 

' 
~ 

~ 
'C

; 
z 

~ 
[ 

• 
" 

':
' 

i;
 
~ 

i 
"': 

=·
; 

' 
' 

ii' 
!_ 

• 
ir

 a
~
 

8 
-

t 
•P

er
 ~~

 
' 

' 

' 
[
K
~
t
 

;,
:~

,D
l!

l!
Dv

 
~
~
 

·;
t 

' 
' 

f 
i '

 
''!

'! 
~·

 
c 

*~
 

' 
' 

i'
'"

 
[ 

£ 
E:

 
: 

~ 
' 

' 
Ii

~ 
i;l

 

R
 ,
!~

<t
lf

lf
; 

"
<

 

Ff
il 

' 
i 

~
]
 
s.

. 
~)
> 

' 
~
·
[
-

~ 
,i

l~
~·

oj
_j

jj
J.

~ 
f 1

 ~: 
~ 

' 
i(

'~
 ~
 

::
;;

;:
;:

<
:1

 

~ 
~
,
!
1
0
0
_
 

1i 
i.: 

8 
' 

~
 

c 
=

 
" 

' 
r,

~'
 

~ 
~ 
-:

 ~ 
~ 

E
. 

2 
l~

! 
-

( 
i 

f'
"'

 
i 

D
 

D
 

~l
:i

 
'·

 
I 
-
-
-

~ 
>

 

f 
<

 

1+1
': rr

1: 
s 

""
-g

. 
D

O
D

 
-<

 

' 
~1+

!. 
~ 

[[
<5
"0
~ 

~ 

~ 
c 

! 
• 
'l
L

 
~ 

• 
I 

..
. 

l 
r;; 

0 
0:

 
~
 

•o
/o

i:l
f 

D
 

-
' 

c 
~ 

~ 
! 

' 
• 

0"
' ,

.-c
 
=

 §.
 

' 
' '

 
!_

!!
.:

 
~ 

~ 
1 

ftl
 

~
'
 

z 
D

 
>

 L
-
-
-
-
-
-
_

J
 

c 
~
 

1-
! 

~ 
' 

~
 

' 
" -

,~ 
Ii 

~ 
~i

 
j 

~ 
lG 

~ 

" 
~ 

• 
s 

D
 

I· 
<

 ~ 

z 
" 

i'
'~

 
] 

" 
~ 

i(
O

-;
.i

 

' 
I 

-~]
 ¥S

! 
• 

i 
~ 

' 
f 

~ 
~
 

"'
~~

-F
. 

~ 
; 

[ 
g-

g, 
a-

'§ 
I 

' 
[ 

0 
~w

i;
 ~
 

i 
"
'c

 _f
 

• 
Ci!

 ' 
, 

!_ 
• 

F
0
fi

 
r 

f"
·i

'"
 

~
;
>
:
c
 
-,

:.
 

l ~ 
o 
o

[,
 

f 
~~

gi
 

l:i 
<

 <
 

;;i
 

~.
~~
-!
' 

~~
~~

~ 
; 

~
~
i
~
 

r 
~ 

1j
 1

l. 
n 

~,
..
.c
~ 
~~

~ 
~ 

;~
] 
t~
~t
~l
~ 

1
·
~
·
d
·
 
i 

.8-a
, 8

 ;
jl 

I 
'
'
 !J

: 
~
 i 

<:
-

s, 
s,

:;
 §

 
i~

ii
i~

-'
i 

~ 
~
~
i
 .. 

' 
i1

]~
l~

i;
-~

 
~
"
a
.
i
"
-
-
~
c
s
.
~
 

[ 
i 
~ 

=.
,:.-

"E
 g

·p
 ~

 ~
§-

~~
·g

. 
"·

a 
' 

•f
l I

 
!~
~f
~l
~ 

" 
if

 r. 
-.

 f 
-·

 ~
 

. 
"
' 

~ 
s, 

l. g
 f< 

~ 
~ 

D
 

i 
['

 
1 

~·
~"

··
·-

g
-
~
~
g
~
~
i
 

f 
' 

0 
§ 

J-
'f-

! 
-

' 
' 

H
8

 
~'

] 
~i

~l
!!

~ 
.:;-"'

 
{o

§'
-'f

 
:f

"'
 5

-
! ~

' 
~ 

:g
"<

;:>
 

,:.
 

s,
-

~
 

; 
H

 
'· 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

r 
~ 

I 
0 

! l
.• 

~
 

i 
c 

c 
• 

! 
f 

~
.
 0

 

:~
~ 

D
 

'I
i 

6 
l 

~ 
l· '"

,; ~
 

<
 

; 
~ 

' 
~ 

'E
. 
. 

~ 
" 

c 
~ 

1 
' 

~ 
~ 

e 
<

 

" 
r 

i 
• 

~r
;,

~ 
<

 
;::; 

' 
>

 
~ 

! 
~ 

~!
!;

 
" 

" 
<

 
$ 

" 
;;

-~
.2

 
c 

' 
t 

~a
_~

 

r 
~ 

~
~
c
 

E
 

~ 
I 

, 
~ 

§~
 

' 
" 

I 
''" 

I 
i 

d~
 

! 
~i

§.
 

! 
! 

~:
 

• 
~ 

t•
 

~ 
I 

' '
 ' 

' 
0 

~ 
~ 

I i i,1
ijft

t 
I 

z 
~ 

~ 
@

 g
 g

 g
 

0 

.I
 

c;i
 

)>
 

~ 
H

 ~ ~ 
~"

 
Ps

l" 
z 

~ 

~1·
 

,i,
 

,, 
g ~

i~
 i3 

""l>
I' 

,, 
. .

 "
 

1~np
1~)

))
 

m
 

2 
E

 2
 

··o
 ~.

.,
g 
! 
~
i
x
~
 

~~
 

z 
~ 

~ 
~ 
~ 

i!
~~

,,
 

o:
i~

 0
"
' 

" 
• 

c 
>

l"
?

 
N

' 
fr

·~
 

I 
x 

" 
§ 

£ i
 

>
 

~ 
~ 

"'"
 

IJJ
 

• 
••

 
' 

• 
! "

 '
• 

~ 
-

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 



' ' ci' z .!,
 ! • 

z r ~ ' ' I !. ~ I ! z r f I !. f l 

z 0 >
 ,, ,, m
 

z 0 x '" < 

<
 ~ z 

[ 
~ 

! 
l>l

 
~ 

•p
 

f 
~ 

' 
' 

i"t
-1

 
&

;r
r[

 
• 

~ 
6'

" 
~ 

D
 

" 
;:: 

~
 

' 
~ 

• ~ 
• 

z t 
c 3 c ' ~ 

f 
J 

~l
 

~ 
~ 

.,,
.--

i~
~~

 [
~!

[ 
c 

' 
§ 
! '

 
' ~ 

--
-
. ;~J[

~[
~~

 
H

H
p 

r 
..

. 
[?

!.
ii 

'i
 ' 

' 
! 

• 
~~
!!
f~
"i
il
s 

~ 
~ 

i 
ii
 sr

·,,,. 
s 

s-
a 

D
 

~
!
~
~
~
~
~
 

' 
H

 
i"

 ! 
~ 

1 
! 

&B
: 

. 
. 

l 
: 

~ 

' 
ti 

' t g_ 
D

 
>

 
~ 

I 
" i 

I!;
 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 
z 

0 
' 

f 

z ' ] 
~~

~~
1t

 
l~

l!
s-

r 
. ~f

~ 
t 

11 I! ~ ' 

§ • ~ 
' 

~ 
8 ' 

' 
~ 

vo
::

~c
~~

 
' 

cf
 

§'. 
0 

<
 <

 
. 

§ 
<

 
~§

 ~
~
=
1
 
~
H
 

~ 
=

 ~
 

F. 
1!

 
c 

'f H
~ 

i[
l 

z c 
I 

.-
i 

·h
 

~ 
~ ~

 g 
! ~

 
l$

! 
l 

~
'
 

r 

jl+ 
I I

 ! 
r q • 2 ~
 ~ >
 " < 

f I 
" ' • 

' 
' 

i 
I 

~ 
t 

§'I 
l 

' 
iQ

~.
§ i

 
[ 

[ 
' • [ 

Jj
'~

-.
g 

g 

i 
'· 

~ 
g 

=
 

!Ji
· i 

I ! ! 
! 

I 
n 

I 
! 
"
I ! 



. / 

1.<.I·"'"'" hll'-> 
r~ ,. <•.11<f 

•l·r· 

PRoPOSEO NCSHP 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPOUND 

WI 161'.T SELF SUPPORT TO~R 

PAR£NT PARCEL &OUNOARY 
<TYP.) 

PROPOSED TOWER SETBACKS 

PROPERTY BOUNDARY LINE DISTANCE 

NORTH N-3'• 

NORTHEAST 53·.,.. 

~" e!l'·!I"• 

SOUTHEAST 7T-·r~ 

SOVTH 84'-11"• 

~" 36"·7'"• 

p,J)JJ.•'0H'1f0,,0«.0-C 

<l•>.,o;U UKoCM! l~L[) 

"''"'-''""·"""'':'"'" 

J.>IJJA<-tNT ~AJ{<:l-1 
f">.Nl'l f ~rnlTHV.CQHf' 

~M<t.tL• '°'"'"'"'""' 

I 
I 

"-.. 

~.,. / 

, ... 

PARENT PARCEl 
CARROLL NC PROPERTIES, LLC 

PARCEL 8: 2Hll1fH7~QOO 

"-.. 
"-.. 

OVERALL PROPERTY PLAN 
1132" -

L '" \l,',',K _.,.,, 

'~c•O'.\"'"·"'"'""'ll•J>Ni., 

I 

' ' 

I 
I 

' ' 

I 
I 

I 

I 

' MU !Ad-~' eAH<-rL 

I 

'. l/\h1l_~l<<l~LrH'm(llJ 

I 
I 

' ¥•ll<CL:.<.; .'"''•"•"'''"" 

\ 
\ 

I 
I 

I 

\ 

I 

\ 
\ 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

~·.9· 

I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

,, .. 
All IA<.t~r ~AK·:~c 

"" "'''~ f,R.'1-! ~ OAISY I: 
h'fK( l" <'-0 t~""'°""" 

.-.:. 
~ 

' 

PREPARED BY 

~ ,,-..... 

ETS 
-- I g~ 901 t '1' Cl .... Pl.4.:C 

3227 WELLINGTON COURT 
RALEIGH, NC 2re1 s 

o 919-7112-2"110.r."1~1 
,.._,•og1......-...r..M10o-.-. 

PREPARED FOR 

'" 

.. 
" 
" 
" .. 

• SITE NAME 

AHO 
~ 

HP-1382 
PROJECT NUMBER 

21-22669-0lA 

SITE ADDRESS 
1432 SAMPSON RO 
BOONE. NC 2eeo7 

M~ DETAILS 

Q1J22/2021 CONSTRUCTION 

01/29/2021 CLIENT COMMENTS 

tlZ/11112!121 CLIENT COMMENTS 

00/11112!121 CLIENT COMMENTS 

\l4115/2021 CLIENT COl>'MENTS 

!OAAWNBY·AQ !CHECKED BY· AO 

SHEE"• ""·~ 

OVERALL PROPERTY 
PLAN 

SHEETJ c.1. O I ~~:~.e~v~~: !, 



/ 
/ 

/ 
0 

/ 

I l I 
I 

• 
! 

I I I
 I ! 

m
 ' 0 

i 
~ 

~ 
~ 

• •
 ~ 

~ 
i ! ~ 

6
9

 • 
~ 

i ' 
~ 

i 
g 

~ 
3 

~ 
" § 

~ 
0 0 

~ 
' 

~ 
0 

• 
. " 

' 0
-
. ' 

. 
<

 
! 

ri
 

rn
 

n 
g 

' 
' 

~ 
• 

UI
 

,!,
, 

~ 
~ ~

 
:.

 
r r 

! 
en

 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 
8 

:::;
 

•• 
• 

0 

i 
rn

 

" 
I I

I ~ i
 

.,, r;; 
• 

i ~
 

~ 
~ 

z 

/
·
 

.
/
 " / I I ' ,)
 

/ 
/ ' 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 

!!:
5: 

-
... 

iH
l-

~"
T 

o-
~:
r-
0•
~1
~ 

-·
~-

g 
~!

..
~:

cl
 

··
~·

 ,
 .

. ~
o.

 
~"

'~
 ,

.~
 ~
 '?

 
''
 

~
 

..
. 

0 
i'I

 

/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
" / 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 

/ 
' 

' 
/
/
 
_ .. ' 

/ 
. 

. 
' 

' 

I ,, 
" 

I 
e·

 -~ 
i~

~~
 

·. -
-,~

 

1;n
1~~

) 
J 

'11 
. 

i 
~ 

''
 



~ 

• ~ ~ 

~ 
0 

I :.: 
-;;; 

" 
-0 

..
 

m
 

~ 
ii 

• 
;=

 
~
 

iv
 

m
 

0 
m

o
 

"' 
~ 

,, 
::;

 

i~ 
m

 .,, 
• 

>
<

 
>

 
~
 

m
• 

s
• 

z 

I I I 

! 
! I 

I 

i 
~ 

I I I
 

0 

I 
~ 

I 
~ 

~ 
0 

i ' ' 
• 

e
e
 • 

! 

i ' 
~ 

I 
c 

! • 
~ 

~ 
' g ~

 

" 
...

 . "
 
-.

 
n 

11
1~

 
~ ~

 

~ ~
 ~ 

~ 
g 

!'i 
!'i 
~
C
l
 

I 8 
8 

8 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

g 
:;; 

l H
 ~ 

" 

_,,
· 

,
/
·
 

/ 
,
/
·
 

/ 
/
.
,
/
 ... 

I .J 



c !!: m
 

z "' 5 '~
 

:: 
c ' "
' :::; m
 .,, >
 

z 

c !!: m
 

z .,, "
' 

>o
 

z
Z

 
m

 
c "' :::; m

 

l 

~ 

.I
 

/ 
/ 

/ ' 
>

 
>

-
- " 

'\
 . " . 1 >

 I I 

[3'
 

~-
-7
:-
-

L
J
 

L
J
 

-
/,

/·
/·

/·
"'

3t
l 

~ 
c
/
 

~
~
-
-
-
-

,-
•
-
•
·r

-
-
•
-
•
-
•
-
>

_
_

_
_

,/
 

,, 
.t

-.
IZ

 



,, ~ ,, 0 (/
) m
 

c 
~ 

G
') 

~
~
 

~ 51.
 .. ... ~~
 c z G

l ,, \; z •• I~
 

~
~
 •• 

I 
G

l 
~
,
,
 

' ~ 
c"

 
_

o
 

z
,,

 
G

l 
0 

,, 
(/

) 
; 

\;
~ 

' 
z 

~ 

' '
 ' 

0 
! 

n 
~ 
' '

 
~ ~

 U
I !

 
g 

1 
; 

~ ~ 
8 <

 ~ 
g 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
I 

--
'\

 
\ 

I 
\
,
 \ 

\ 
' 

' 
', 

\ 
\\

 
-

\ 
\ 

\1
 

"1 
\ 

\ 
I 

\ 
l 

' 
''
 

' 
''
 

' 
I'

 
' 

I 
I 

' 
, '

 
' 

''
 

I 
-J

i 
I 

7.
JJ

' 
f 

ii 
r
-
-
-

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

I 
I 

' 
' 
~
 

1
-'

 
I 

' 
' 

' I ' I ' I 

~1·
 

~P~
li 

m
m

O
,.

, 
,,,.

 
.i

 

' I I ' 

Ii
 ·~I

'll 
I 

.i
!.

.,
 

lli 
-

-<
 

i g
 "~

 II ii
1~))

) 
' 



·- .:~ 

-------- -- - -- :--~ 

TOWER ELEVATION 

~ -< 
0 :;; 

(') rn 
lo ;u 

rn 
r 
rn ;; 
:::j 
0 
z 



c PROPOSED ANTENNA SCHEDULE I PREPARED BY 

~ ,,-.,. 
OWNER I QTY. I SIZE 

TYPE 
MANUFACTURER -

(FT) ANTENNA MODEL NUMBER 

NCSHP 1 17'-2" OMNI RFI - CC807-11 (RX) 

NCSHP 1 2'-0" TTA TTA 

NCSHP 1 17'-2" OMNI RFl ·CC807-11 (TX) 

NCSHP 1 8'-0" DISH RFS - PADS-658 

NCSl'IP (fUTURE1 1 11'-Z' OMNI RFI- cceo1-·11 (RX! 

NCSHP (FUTURE1 1 17'-2" 01\.'INI RFl-CC807-11 (TX1 

NCSHP 1 8'-0" DISH RFS - PADB-658 

NCSHF' (FUlUH[J 1 6'-0" DISH RFS - PAD6-65B \FUTURE) 

NCSHP \FUTURE! 1 0'-0" DISH RFS - PAD8-65B 1FUTURf1 

I/VA TUGA COUNTY (FUTURE! 1 21'-'.J' DIPOLE COMM::iCOPE - [18224 

WATUGA cout' r y \~UTURE1 1 21'-3' DIPOLE COMMSCOPE - DH224 

WA 1 uc~,:., COUNT'( iFU'I UCU:} 3 :2'-'1" PANEL UBIOUITI NETWORKS -AM-VSG-T1 

~" 
;---coNTAACTOI'! TO REFER TO MOST RECENT RADIO FREQUENCY OE.SIGN BY NCSHP PRIOR TO CQMMCNCING \l'llORK. 

PROPOSED NCSHP 6' 
STANQOFF MOUNT 

(TYP.) 

PROPOSED NCSHP AA OMNI ANTENNA 
(RFI PIN:CC807·11) 

PROPOSED NCSHP TTA 

PROPOSED NCSHP DISM ANTENNA 
(RFSPIN PAQ6..85B 

,,~ 
,./'""'. 

ANTENNA LAYOUT@ 180'-0" 
1111"•1'-0" 

PROPOSED NCSHP TX OMNI ANTENNA 
(RFI PIN CC&rf.11) 

ANTENNA ELEVATION LEG 
AZIMUTH 

- 160'-0" :I: A 

- 180'-0" :I: A 

- 180'-0" ± B 

245.07" 180'-0" ± c 
FUTURE 160'-0" ± FUTURE 

FUTURE 160'-0" ± FUTURE 

71.46' 150'-0" ± B 

FUTURE 130"-0" ± FUTURE 

FUTURE 130·-o-· ± FUTURE 

~UTUHE 130'-0" ± A 

FUTURE 100'-0" i A 

FUTURE 80'-Q" t B 

~'""~""AA~ -·----~ 

CABLE (QTY.) TYPE 

(1) 718" COAX 

(1) 1/2" COAX 

(1) 1-5!8" COAX 

(1) EW63 

\ 1) 7ff)" COAX (FUTURE) 

(1) 1-$18" COAX (FUTURE) 

(1) EW63 

\1) EW63 lt-UTURE1 

\1j EW631FUTURE) 

(1) i/6" COAX (FUTURE) 

[1J 718'' COAX (FUTURE) 

(1) CA 1'5E (FU I UREJ 

ETS = r ... -= a2:I1 WELLINGTON COURT 
RAl.EKlH_ NC27815 

o: g1g..782·2710. !: 91~1 
www.onglOH_wo,_llono.,,.,m 

PREPARED FOR 

• SITE NAME 

AHO 
SITE NUMBER 

HP-1382 
PROJECT NUl<l!IER 

21·22e89-01A 
SITE AOORESS 

14:12 SAMPSON RO 
BOONE, NC 28807 

1 e.TITUOEILONGffUDE 
Jl!.1544lll","'"'°29QD" 

' ~ ·~' ·•· ;"'- . ~ .. NTftllll: .. 

"'""~ ~··· 

. ai """~ ~ 
~. 
~~~&?ml 

'" M" OETAlLS 

• 0112212021 CONSntucnoN 

01r.llil2021 CLIENT COMMENTS 

' 02/1&2021 CU ENT COMMENTS 

' OJ/1&2()21 CLIENT COMMENTS 

• 0>4/1&2021 CLIENT COMro!ENTS 

' • 
' • • 
" " 
" " 
" 

IORA'l>'NBY:AD ]CHECK.EOBY·AO I 
SHEET TITLE 

~NTENNA SCHEDULE 
&LAYOUTS 

ANTENNA LAYOUT@ 150'-0" & ~I ISHEE.Tt c~3 l~~:~.E.'.!~~:v_~~ I 118"•1'-0" 



w
 

A
,-

-
, 

B. 
-

' 
~ 

' 
' 

l 
; 

!'
.1

~ 

-
--,

---
, 

~
~
 

\ 
~ 

! 
,. 

. ' 
m

 
-

m
 

r 
"O

 
m

 
i;; 

<
 

i 
~ !

i 
W

I 
~
z
 

' 
•<

 
£ 

5 
;;;

 

~
 

z 
::;; 

"' 
~
 

' 

i)
 ! 

I 
. <

) 
i)

' 

~~
 

I ' 
I 

I 
'
-

~ 
' 

I 
' 

11
'.>

;- 4J
 

<>
, 

~
 

~~
 

1 
m

 
' 

m
 

m
 

r 
r 

m
 

m
 

<
 

<
 

~~
 

Cl
 

• 
)>

 
:;;: 

-I
 

5 
5 

z 
z 

" 
E

l 
)>

 

. 

. 
. 

~
 

. I 

~:
 
=~
I 

II 

I 
"
~
 

~ 
"' 

I .
 " ;:;

; =
 ' .

 . '
 
.. 

. " 
. ~ 

0 
~ 

I 
I~ 

. 
~ 

:i
: 

n 
p 

I~ 
f "

 
ri

 
m

 
' 

n 

• 
tb~

~"'
 

; 
J,.

 
r 

~ 
~ ~

 
~ 

8il
~, 

-
t 

~: 
"I. 

:...
 

m
 

~I
i!

 
"""

>I~
 

,, 
.!i

. 
~
x
i
 

lill
~1~)

)) 
"
•
 

~
m
o
.
,
 

" 
~'!j~

~! .. i 
! 

...
 

m
 

g 
~~

~;
; 

"'.
 

:;;! 
0 

;=
 "' 

~ 
~ ! 



(/
/ 

:i
: m
 

~
 

m
 

;u
 .... ;;; 0 

,o
 

' ::;
; z ,, s m
 

0 m
 

;;:;!
 

;=
 

z 0 
, 

.... 
~ 

c:
 

. 
(/

/ 

m
 

0 

y 

>
 

ll 

(/
/ 

:i
: m
 ~ ;u
 " 0 z " ill 

, 
.... 

~
m
 .,, 0 c z ~ 5 z ,, >
 

z 

~ ) 

1
1
·
~
 

!V
E

R
IF

V
 S

H
H

T
E

R
 D

IM
E

N
SI

O
N

) 

0 ~~
 

II 
,J

i~
 

-.. 
' 

!
o
~
 

' 
' 

-n
il

\"
l 

~ 
y 

:::
::;

i 
~ 

6
§
~
 

..
 

~ 

' 
,,

,c
c
 

'!:
 

0 
rn

;J
~ 

F
 

0 
"'

 

' 
~
 

~
 

~ 

-
-1

/ 
j; 

L
l.

_
 

' 
F

 
~
 

Z
.f

fM
IN

 
!O

R
 T

O
 F

R
O

ST
 L

IN
E

) 

,, 
' 

"
' 

0
>

 
.,

 ~ 
!~

 

I 
'"

 
~~

 
!
>

 

~ 
;;i

ili 
• 

0 
,o

 
l"

 
;;

~ 
!i

 
~ 

C
EN

TE
R

ED
 

k
- -



(/
) m
 g 0 

~
z
 . "' 0 m
 ii ;=
 

z 0 . _, ~
c
 

. 
(/

) m
 

0 J f. "' ' I • ' 

G
l 

o
m

 
m

Z
 

~~
 

r 
_,

 
(/)

 0
 ,, 

.1
7 

J"
 M

IN
 

C
LE

A
R

 {
TY

P
.J

 
I I

 

1 1
"-

0
"M

IN
 

!O
R

 T
O

 f
R

O
S

T
 L

IN
E

) 

; 
I '

 ' 
' '

 ' 
. .

 ' .
. .

 " 
0 

!
!
 

' 
• " ~ 

!!
 

G
l m
 

z m
 

~ _, 0 ,, 
~~

 
0 m

 
r m

 :;; _, 0 z 

! • 

" 
-.

 • 
~ 

~ 
' I~ 

~
)
 

-~
 

L g 
g 

~ 
~ 

• 
0 

0 
>

 
0 

0 
~.

 
. 

-
••

 
0 

~ 
~ 

i1f
.yu

••• 
~ 

·" 
il'i 

il'i 
H

 
~ 

! 

' ~
 

/ 

~
 

illl
lU

llll
llll

llil
illl

i!!
l 

. 
' 

illll
Ul

lllll
Ui

lllll
llill

UI
 

Jm
illl

llll
Ul

lU
Jll

U 
II

! 

ffil
ITT

IJfl
IDU

UII
DIU

ffi 
Tif

lflI
DU

lffi
illf

fill
ilff

i 
][m

uJ
\lli

llif
fill

llll
ffi 

~
 

... 
H

E
IG

!H
 

t- ' ~~ ~~
 .. ~~ ~
 

~---
--~-

---,
 

-~
 

i ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 

...
 ""

 
~~

~~
~ 

~-
~z

~~
 

~~~
~I 

~g
i!

i~
 

";
:'

0
0

 
... ~

,
,
 

~i
ll

 

-

~
~
 

' 
~ 

~ 

r
-
t
-

' 
' 

~ 

~ 
~ 

' 
r
-
~
 

' 
i 

' 
' 

r
-

- i 
~ 

I-
i 

' 
-
-

-
1'

-I
C

 1
17

 
I l ·
 
II"' 

1 
.. ~

 
~ 

~ 
~~

 .. -

• 
~§ 

'~l
l" 

~1h
·1l

 
u !

. ~
)))

' 
~~
.,
~~
~ 

~ 
~~

~ 
~ 
~
 ~
 J

: 
~ 

0
0

 ~
 0

"
' 

ti i
dlt

i 
§i
i~
)>
 

N
"
 

!i!o
 "

"
0

 
q

rn
 



~ t ~
c:::::

::::::
: 

c 
.m

 
<

 ~ ; J 
co

 
!.

 
;.

 
m

m
 

.... 
"' 

" 
~<

!!
 

r
e
 

I 
en

 G
l m
 

; 

,-
--

--
--

--
--

-­
'--

--
--

--
--

--
-

! 
' '

 ' 
' 

l ' ~ ~ • ' ~ 

' 
g 

' ii
 

9'
-"

6'
• 

(T
O

P 
O

F 
IC

E 
B

R
ID

G
E)

 

' ! ~ ~ 

! 
! 

~ 
~ 

~ 

I 

-"
 ~

 
• 

' 
' ' 

' 

.i
 l •

 
II"' 

i 
u p

 
'hi 

. ~ 
d~1

!i·
1~ 

g 
!I

:~
 .

....
. 

c:
 
:c

t 
i,H

.,~
)))

 
' '

 
~
I
~
~
 0

 
m

 

~ 
~ 

>
~
 N

"
' 

•j•
g• 

g 
~
 

~ 
~~

 
~ 

!"
 



.,, m
 

z " m
 

""C
J 

~ 
0 "' .... 0 m

 .... >
 

;=
 

f .,, m
 

z " m
 

0 ~ i;;
 

I 
~
-
-

-
--

-

7-
!T

M
IN

 

3
".

U
M

IN
 

1!
"--

0'"
 C

H
A

IN
 l

lN
K

F
A

B
R

IC
 

l'.
-0

' S
A

A
.B

ED
 \M

RE
 

" 

IJ 

0 ;>
l z m
 

I 
;>

l 

G
l >
 .... 

·-
·-

·-
m

 

~ 
m

 
z 

~ 
,o

 
"
0

 

! 
~ 

I 
• 

;>
l 

""C
J 

i 
c 

i 
r 

! 
! 

r ""C
J 

0 "' .... 0 m
 >
 

;=
 

!,
 

6~
~ 

' 
~ 

. .-
::; 
I 

~~
i~

 
• 

~~
~;

: 
' 
• 

,.
o

..
;z

 

' 
rn

.,
,o

c
 

/ 
I 

I 

f .-
--

--
--

--
--

'-
--

--
--

--
--

·-
·-

·-

\ 
/ 

'-

,. 
•
o

 
~ 

I 
~
g
 

~2
 

! 
i!

 
! 

' 
! 

3'
.;

s"
M

IN
 

• 
0

0
 

~ 
c
o

 
i 

0, 
3
'
~
1
1
1
1
N
 

~
,
 

/ 
I c

:_
: _

__
_ :

::
 



• 
i 

~ • 
rri<~l~I ii •

. . !I~ 11~ 
\\' -~111~ ~ i 

• <
( ~ ~ 

: 
3~ ~r1 . 

! 
II 

• 
! 

' 
A

t.;. ~ I' 
.. 

@
. ........ ,t> 

e 
"I' ;,~ 

1~ • 
I 

111 i1 , · · -!11:l!l1l!l'l'IJIJl.l.111111 ~ * 

~ ~ 
ul 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

0 
0 

• 

" 
" 

~ 
g 

ii! 
0:: 

g 
0

: 
~ 

IE 
~ 

~ 
i 5 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

! ! 
~ 

1il 
['! 

:?': 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

g 
!G. 

':i 
fil 

:OS 
~ 

~ : ~~ 
~ 

"-
::So 

u 
., 

o
."' 

ii! 
~ 

~~ 
~ ~ ~~ 
., 

1
-1

il'l'3
 

~ ~!~~ 
~
 

o
>

-;!:i5
 

~ 
G5~~ 

., 
il:;;:o

;i; 

~ 
8i~~ 

il 
t:;o::ill::' 

~ 
~~~~ 

~ 
~
t
~
~
 

~!~ii!gg 
i;!o::l~g~ 
u!j;1-;i:_.i=

 

~i~~~8 
~cl::'1-5.0 

~~~@~~ 
~~ .. g~~ 
~~~~:Jg 

~~~~!~ 
~[il>-llgi<l 
~§8~~5 

·1·""! 
~.,,,,,_iJ!8o:: 

z
. 

• 
•
•
 • 0 

' ' 
~[il 

~ 

~~ ~ 
•
•
 

0 
o

<
 

" 

f~ § 
o

, 
0 

~~ 
~ 

~~ 
e: 

);;~ 
~ 

~t:l 
:s 

;;Ji!; 
~ 

!.!!~ 
ffi 

~~~o~ 
;~~~o 

z:~~l=~J:':J::: 
gffi8~:1:<'i~8 
;i;S~2glY,~~ 
~"":i:"o 

«
"' 

!!:ty~~~~);;~ 
~~i'j":J~~5~ 
:;;.:;i;b~~&filt:J 
~o"'"§uz"'u 
og~~~::1~:~ 
g~~lif~i 
:~!i,.~:s::!~ 
;:i;:;~~og::18g 

'idi:ii:f., ""'"' 
'il...:,.; ... ~.,;~ ... ., 

3
Q
Y
l
l
~
-
N
l
l
'
I
 

v 

' 
w

 

~ 
ffi~ 

~ 
~ii! 

~ 
f5ll 

~ 
~~ 

~ 
~~ 

" 
"" 
"' 
"" 
ii§

 

'" 

~~ 
•• "" 
~i !~ 
.. 

I / 

>o 
•• ffi5 ~i 
§! ~~ 
.. 8~ 

'" 
.. i.-.i5 ! I ' ' 

ii 
~~ 
o

•
 

~~ .. "" 
O

w
 

.. " 
---.'::::JI r-; ~

 

'"" \ 
§ 

! i 
~~ 

~i 
);;);; 

~~ 
il"

 
0

'1 
:s? 

:si!i 

~
~
~
 

)'< 

A
~
 

~
k
:
:
r
 

"
-
0

 

ffi~~ 
g~ 

~
 

i~~ 
~i 

":l,'2-
;l8

 
c 

g
o

 
:;s 

,,":l 
0 

"'3
 

~ 
" 

~ 

z 0 ~ "' w >1• 
~
;
t
 

0 "' "' w 8 <
( 

(!) 
z C3 ~ ::> 

61~ 
z ::> 
0 C

l. 
:;: 
0 u 

~ 0 ~ 
5 :il 
'0

 
H

 
0

.
 

~ g 

~ ~ ~ 
<

( 
~
 

.. 

~ ~ ~ 
>-

~;;I 
0 

z;;; 
:i ~ ~ 
; ~ ~ 
~ f ::' 
:il ~ :il 
w

 '0 
F

 "~ 
~ ~ ~ 
~ ~ ~ 
~ F

., 

' 
8

"
 

~ ~ g 
o

._
 

• 
~
 

0 

~ ii:~ 

~ ~ ~ 
~ :i ~ 
tij ~ ~ 
~ ~ ~ 
a !Ii'"' 

.. ~ 8 ~ 
~ ~ ~ 2 
~ ~ ~ B

 
' ... 
j l'. 
i ~ ~; 
' . i 

' 
w

 
w

 

~" 
<!I 

-
N

"' 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

: 
~ 

~ s g~ 
~ 

g 
'Z 

"' 
g ~ 

., 
~ 

8 
~ 

~
~
 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

a~ 
ii: 

'-' 
>-

z 
" 

0 

~ 
~ i 

~ 
I~ 

§ ~ 
~ 

~ 
~ffi 

z 
u 

w
 

:> 
>-

"' 
s 

g 
~ 

~ 
~a 

5 
8 

~ 
~ 

f
~
 

;;; 
w

 
w

 
::c 

., "' 
a
-' F 

'" 
1:: 

"'F
 

ffi@ ~ 
~ 

§ 
~ ~ 

g8 :il 
~ 

~ 
~ :i! 

g~ ~ 
E

 
~ 

~
@
 

,
,
,
;
i
:
~
~
F
~
:
 

~~ ~ 
~ 

~ 
::l ~ 

8~ ~ -g ~ 
~ § 

~
z
 

.o
z g 

!> 
:S

" 
a:~;::~~ 

a 
g
~
 

,
S
~
q
~
~
 

8 
f!!! 

~".: "'~ 8 
~ 

,, 
.'.S 

.,~~~~ 
" 

~~ 
~2) 

>
!" ~ 

::! 
~ ~ 

~:,-;.:~~ 
::l 

~
F
 

.'.S~~..:~ 
~
.
~
~
 

g
~
~
~
~
 
5
~
~
~
 

..,:;~~~ 
F~fS:i 

~~~~~ 
~~~~ 

~~~~~ 
~~55 

"0
°1

• s•o, 
i5 

~ .. ~ 
:;;:!il;;w

 
..,F .... ~"' 

. .,""' I!' 
~~~51~cg~\E1;: 
;!;wu"'u~F~~Oi 
:!',:!:~g~:i!~~~~ 
~F~1il~~o:;;:::::l 
.. ~
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
 

«
'-' 

0
-
' 

"
'"

' 
........ 

"
' 

"
' 

o
;
>
=
"
>
F
~

0
o
o
 

~~~~~~~~~~ 
'Z~F!l!~~~~'Z'Z 
8
8
~
~
<
t
2
<
C
:
i
!
8
8
 

"' ..J 

~ w
 

0 (!) 
z Ci 
i'2 (!) 

<D
 

-t .u 

i 0 w
 

~I~ 
l­o z 



-
~
 

-0
 

-m
 

-
o

 
-o

 
-~

 
-
0

 
w

 
c 

.
~
 

<">
<">

g 
z 

'.:5
 

m
 

~c
g~

Z:
;'

 g
 _..., 

m
 0

 
0 

oz
 

I 'l
 

i 
0 

I 
c 

8
~
g
g
 

:::j
 

g
i
:
~
 

(l
i;
i;
:;
'~
 

~~
 ~
 

.o 
~i

 0
 

,, 
m

 
~
~
 

£!
:! 

J,
J 

p 
,,
Eo
;;
:'
:l
~ 

m
 

~
 

~ 
~~

 
~i 

i 
~ 

c 
I lii:

:1
tig

 z
 
~i

~ 
•
z
 
i~

 ~
 !I

ii 
~
~
 

r;1
Z

 
Z

 
7'

::
t;

;t
;:

:3
 (.

/) 

I 
$:

: 
m

 

~ 
' 

~~
~~

 _(
;) 

!:
le

i~
 

p 
o

m
 

~~
 Q

 
~~

5g
!:

l~
 

~~
 

.o
 

-~ 
w

 I 
"·

"'
~:

:I
 -

a 
-
~
 
m
~
 
>

 ~!
•£

 
r
n

 
C

l;! 

" 
~~

 
~~

~l
il

 ~
 

~~
~ 

~ 
§? 

~
g
 -

-t 
6 

~~
~~

~~
 

,o
 

<
m

 
~~

 
• 

F
~
 

I ff;
; 

ei
"'

O
 _..,

. ....
 .,, 

m
o

 

• 
,, 

~ 

I ~-~
:~ 

£ 
.. .

,,$
 

<
o

 
j~

 z
 

C
li!i

g 

' 
o

i 
si
;g
~~
~ 

c 
m

o
 
~ 

~c
c~

 
·~

 
~~

g 
~~

 
.~

 
o

m
 

0 
•
o

 

' 
~ 

j
~
 

, 
,.

 
i 

~~
~~

 ~
 

i~~
 ~

"'
 

;;§
 

' 
~~

 
j:
=i
!!
ff
i;
;:
~ 

·~ 
go

 
~ 

f ,
,,~

 
~ 

I 
-
~
 

ii
l-

"'
~ 

~ 
.... ~

g
g
g
~
 

~ 
(,

?
' 

~~
 

"i
fil

 
m
n
g
~
 
>

 
c
m

 
!~

 
!':

2 
::l

l1,
!:r

n:>
i~£

 

" 
~
§
 

• i
§ 

i 
~ 

~I
~-

~ 
6 

~~
o 

' 
~i

 
E~

~ 
~~

 
2~

>;
;;

0,
, 

!! 
~ 

8
0

 
~ 

' 
~
"
'
o
n
 

m
 
~~

~ 
8 

•' 
~~

~ 
• 

~~
 

~l
l:

6J
.t

i~
 

~~
 

_, 
I ~~

 
I 

! 
~~

~~
 ~
 

3~
:=

 
' 

~·
 

• 
~~

~I
~~

 
-
~
 

i 
~g

 
~~i

 
!~

 
l'
 

"' 
~·

~ 
~ 

"
>

 

~ 
• 

~ 
om

.,,
>

 
8 

~~
~~

ii
i~

 
°'

 
•!

 
~g

 
! 

~~
~ 
~ 

iii:
i' 

/:
;~

 
i;l;

!il 
"°

 
~~

 

~ ~§
 

~ 

~ 
ri

ll
'' 

::::!
 
~ii

 
,, 

'm
o

 

~ 
~~

 
a~

~~
~~

 
·~

 
mi

'l
~ 

S1
;!! 

~ 
" 

I -
>
~
 

0 

! 
i;i:

;' 
~i

il
 

~ 
.... 
i'

;;
~ 

~~
 

~ 
oO

 
~
"
 z

 
~~

 
~:

;'
~ 

~!
!!
..
.,
cm
~ 

~ 
! 

• 
.o

§~
 

~
~
o
 
' 

~j
2 

' 
ll

:~
 

ii
l~

~~
g;

 
o

m
 

c 
c;

..,
ti 

<
o

 
.. 

' 
' 

!:
:l

z~
 

... 
~ 

~~
 

' 
~~

 
~~

~~
~~

 
~~

 
~ 

~ 
! 

i 
6 

!;
!~

~ 
~~

~ 
~-

~!:
Ji 

! 
;
o

 

[ 
c 

• 
~o

il
) 

i
c
~
 
~ 

'~
 

~~
:;

; 
" 

~~
~~

~~
 

g
~
 

i 
' 

~ 
~~

~ 
;!

!~
ii

i 
•
o

 
-~

i 

I 
~~

 
~;

~~
~5

 
o

o
 

~ 
! 

i 
~~

g 
' 

!i(
;;I

 
~'

Cl
 

~g
 

~ 
£ 

~£
!j

l 

' 
,. 

hi
 

" 
~~

!i
l~

~~
 

r
'
 

' 
• 

! 
z;

;:
-;

 
!; 

.. 
~ 

£
~
 

O
•
 

jm
 

~ 
~ 

:!i
Cl

O
 

i~
~ 

§~
 

~ii
!~ 

!~
 

O
o:

i!
.-

,..
..-

~ 
>

 
~ 

~!
;(

~ 
~ 

~ 
~~

:;
:~

~~
 

~'
 

! 
• 

• 
el

 
c~

-~
 
• 

~ 
s 

ill
~ 

0§
~~

~~
 

~~
 

0 
2i

~ 
' ~

 ~
 

H
 

g 
*-

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~~
"£

g 
~-

" 

' 
' 

, 
-o

 
-

lJ
 ~
 

-
o

 
" 

-
m

 
-m

 
,, 

m
 

0 
0 

x 
m~

 0
 

~-
< 

• 
>

 
"'"

"6
 .,

,. 
c 

~-
<l

> 
-
I 

c 
I i

 ii
 ;;; 

~
~
8
-
1
f
f
i
 
~ 

~~
 
~~

 c
 
~!

 
~ 

~ 
~ 

<~
~ 
~ 

0 
~
~
g
@
~
~
~
 

i~
 

[J
 
s: 

~
 

-

I 
I ~ 

~ 
c 

i~
 Q

 ill
~ 

~ ;;; 
m

 r
;:<

=(
l 

O
 

i 
0 

~:
 ~

!l
 Z

in
::

:!
 m

 
§ 

i ~~
 f€

 ~
~ 

~ 
~ 
o~

~ 
~ 

i 
l'

l~
G>

E~
~!

 
§ 

§ 
ii'i 

~
~
"
 0

 

' 
;::!

ii 

I 
~
z
 C

Jl 
::

i~
 

~ 
~ 

~~
~ 

6 
! 

' 
~~

 
I~ 

~~C
lli

 
i 

i 
~~

 
2i;

:; 

• I 
! 

i 
i 

~ 
l'
 

!>
 
~ 

;: 
!!!

s 
c 

Q
-"'

 
~~

 
~~

 
~ 

m
 

"
"
 

;j
 

!;! 
~ 

=i
 

• 
0 

gj
 

' 
' 

i 
]~

 
r~

 
~ 

:~
 

' 
i 

o
~
 

;ii
 

,...
 
• 

! 
~ 

• 
~ 

~ 
r 

1~
 

i 
• 

~ 
' 

' 
"5:

~ 
• 

~ 
~~

 
; ·

" 
! 

• 
I 

• 
6 

'~
 n

i 
I 

g 
! 

~E 
~ ~

 •
 

"' 
' 

~ 

' ~~
 
~
~
 

~ 
iii 

~ 
~ 

! 
' 

i 
~~

 

I ' 
~~

 
~ 

~ 
i 

~;
;;

 

~~ 
om

 
~ 

6 
l 
! ~

~
 
p~

 
i 
I ' 

I 
~ 

~ 
~~

 
' 

o
<

 
§ 

I 
p 

! ' 
I 

~~
 

! 
» 

!iln
 

::
i 

0
o 

• "
' 

a
~
 

0 
0 

0 

~ 
·~ 

I 
"
"
 

<
 

~ 
• 

li
~ 

! 
~~

 mi
ll 

iii 
~ 

' 
• 
I 

I -~
~ 

,
0

 

r~
 

~ 
' 

" 
i 
' ~ 

I~ 
<

 
~~

 
m

 
r 

i 
• 

' 
0 

r
>

 
" 

~ 
0

,
 

! 
! 

i 
I 

~~
 
~~

 
g 

' 
~ 

• g~
 

m
! 

ii e:2
i 

;;: 

I " 
" 

' 
§ 

§~
 

i 
§ 

ig 
~~

 
~ 

I ' 
g 
i 

~ <
r
 

~ 
! 

r
o

 

~ 
i 

§~
 

g 
.. 

13
01

 
s 

m
, 

I 
' 

z!
il 

~ 
, 

• 
' 

i 
§ 

~ 
' 

8~
 

>
 

i 

! 
' 

~ 
,. 

~ 
' 

~! 
" 

' 
~£
~~
S~
~~
£~
E"
~~
~~
~~
~,
. 

c
z
;
;
;
c
i
c
i
c
i
;
!
J
~
~
o
n
 
i~

~~
lS

~~
 

.... 
;;

i~
e:

or
.:

;g
lp

:;
;1

~~
 

ii!!
 ... :

i:
!:

~o
;i

l"
os

 
'.'

.;~
~;'

;ll
!i~

~ 
::i

!il
ao

:;;
 ...

 ;;
;r

;'
.I

<~
""

' 
~"

i~
!;

::
!~

m 
"'

~~
 
~!

il
~~

£5
 

a 
~~
;:
::
~ 

§§
 

~ 
~~

g 
1:1

 
a;

:l
lt

~a
 

;:
~ 

z 
~1

5i
!l

 
6 

"i
ll

i!
~"

 
z:

:; 
" 

o-
<<

"' 
g 

~ 
~~

~ 
j 

~ 
s~

~ 
~ 

"' 
~"

' 
m

 
O

 
E

 
;:: 

~ 

• •
 ilOl 

<P
 

[P
 

<
 

I I
 £•

 i 
li:

!;
i:

l;
<

 
io

~~
 
! 

~1
~~

~ 
" 

o
o

 

I 
;;

!~
 

i 
o

m
 

·~
 

~~
 

• g 
g!i

: 
! 

~ 
~
~
i
<
§
~
§
d
~
 
§ 

~~
~~

~~
 

0 

~ 
0

0
 

zz
::
:1
':
<i
~~
M 

' 
~i 

g
~
~
~
f
;
l
i
 

I 
• 

i 
~~

"'
~ .

.. ~
""

' 

I ~~
~ 

rn
 

z 
~ 

::J:
:u 

o
_

£
 

~ 
O

"
 

\:
]~

 
~
~
g
 

~[
J 

;;
; 

•
0

 

~ 
" 

"'
"'

i!l
 

i 
0 

i 
0 

§ 
! 

~ 
t 

~ 

~ 
§ 

~ 
g 

~ 
iii 

§ 
m

 
! 
. , 

' '
 ' 

<>
 
~ 

• ,. lh
l !

 
r 

! 
~ 

m
 

n 
p 

I i 
(
)
 

' 
~ ~

 u
 

.i
 1 ;~; 

~ 
'?:: 

.... 
! 

I i
!11

 i Z
1• 

;:!!
 ~ 

")' ~ 
>1

~ 

f iil
d~)

)) 
" 

~ 
§ 

,.
, 

~
 i 

:c
 ~

 
r 

' 
~~

i~
~~

 0
0

 m
o,

,, 

I 
z 

" 
I 

' 
N

"
 

0 
' 

' 
'm

 
.... 

' 
m

 
! 

s 
"' 



m
 

r m
 

~ 
~ 

2l
 

.n
 

->
 

;
,
 ,, i;; z "' m ~ n m
 ~ r ,,
 

~ 
31

: 
0 

m
 

lo
 " I ' ' c z -<

 
0 ~ r 

m
 

I 
r m

 " 
' 

0 
-<

 
! 

m
 2

l 
-<

 "
 

>
>

 
;=

 r
 

I 
"' ,

, i;; 
' 

z 
! 

.. 

! ~
 ·~

 m
o

 
Q~

 
•
O

 
~':

ll 

·~ 
<! 

·~
 

~ 
~ 

! 
i 

~~
 

' 
, 

£ 
~ 

' 
a 

' o; 
'° =

 0 

' ~
 

B
 

·"'
--

-
/ 

\ 
··

-
-
·
-

_
/
 

I 

l ' ' ~ " • " ' ~ ' ~ 
-< 

j 
,, m

 
z " 

' 
:i

: 
~
o
 

m
 >
 

;=
 "' 

·1 E1
1 ,m
 '" •m
 

~~
 

i!;
i:l

 
o

" 
~§

 

~s
 

o
•
 

g~
 

~i 
~~

 
6

• 
~i

 
"§

 
~~

 
~~

 

• 
P

'
 

-~
 i 

~ 
~,
, 8 ' . ~ ~ g 

~
 

i 

) 

1-
fS

'M
IN

 
C

IR
C

U
rT

S
 A

l3
0

V
C

 1
.0

0
0

V
O

L
 T

S
 

m
o

•
 

~~
 ~
~~

 
~~

~~
~~

 
;; 

z
o

•
 

i!
~~

 
/:l1

3£
 
~
~
 
51

1~
0 

"'
i:

<
>

 ..
 .,,

< 
Z

<
m

 
~~

 !
!~

~ 
~
~
0
~
5
~
 

~
"
'
Q
 

~ 
!i

?~
! 

~ 

' 
-< 

i:l
ci

"' 



200A, 1201240V, 1013W, 60Hz POWER PANEL SCHEDULE "PP1 UTILITY" 

VA (WATTS) 
'------ WIRE I I LOAD SERVED 

I VA (WATTS) I I BREAKER I CKT LOAD SERVED , WIRE , # PHASE 
CKTIBREAKER 

# 
l 1 l2 

LIGHTNING 
#4 ARRESTOR 

ACH1 #10 

INTERIOR RECEPTS #12 

INTERIOR LIGHTS #12 

EXTERIOR RECEPT #12 

EXTERIOR LIGHTS #12 

WATER HEATER JKT #12 

GEN. BATT. CHGR. #12 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

BATTERY CHARGER 

TOTAL VOLT AMPS 

I POLE I TRIP POLE I TRIP 

2 2 I 30A #10 

20A #12 
2 

20A #12 

1 20A 
2 125A #1 

1 20A 

1 20A 
2 20A #12 

1 20A 

1 20A 
2 20A #12 

20A 

1 20A 20A --
1 20A 20A --
1 20A 20A --
1 20A 20A --

20A 20A --
1 20A 20A --
1 20A 20A 

--
1 20A 20A --

20A 

TOTAL AMPS PER LEG 139.20 137.77 

AMPSX 125% 174.0 

"PP1 UTILITY" PANEL SCHEDULE 
N;,.~. 

l1 

ACH2 

INTERIOR RECEPTS 

SMOKE DETECTOR 

UPS 
TECH PANEL PP2 

TWIST LOCK 
RECEPTACLE #1 

TWIST LOCK 
RECEPTACLE #2 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

TOTAL VOLT AMPS 

PREPAREO BV~ 

~ 

ETS == -~·. 3Zll l'ltOLUNGTON COURT 
RALEIGH, NC 27615 

., g1g.782·2710. t. 91~1 
........ og-.....rsolutlonw.."""' 

PREPARED FOFt; 

• . 

~ 

AHO 
SITE NUM!IER 

HP-1382 
PROJECT NUMBER 

21·Z2~1A 

SITEAOOFtESS· 
14:!2 SAMPSON RO 
BOONE, NC2'11Cl7 

~n':,o!J 'jf_T,J.£ 

REV\ DATE DETAILS 

0112212021 I CONSTRUCTION 

0112V/2D21 I CLIENT COMMENTS 

~t11211211 CLIENTCOMMENTS 

03fl6r.102tl CLIENTCOMMENTS 

04/1512021 I CLIENTCOMMENTS 

" 
" 
" " " 

[ORA\MHIY Ao !CHECKED BY· AD I 

SHEETTlnE 

PANEL SCHEDULE 
"PP1 UTILITY" 

~ 3 1 CURRENTREVf'' 
I C:-· • ETS t: 20<!855AE.02 



• 
•
~
I
P
 

m
 

r m
 ~ ~ r z 0 .... m
 "' 

.• 

! 
I 

°' 
j I

 

0 
! 

I H
 II i

 



(/
) m
 

~ n m
 ~ r 

'
r
 

~ 
3:

 
0 c z -
i 0 ~ ;=
 § m

 
/.,

 

~ ' ! ' 

m
 

r m
 

0 
0 

-
i 

m
 C

! 
-i

 0
 

)>
 )

>
 

;=
 r

 
(/

) 
,, i;;: z 11

' 

r- 1 

j ~
 "

 
•
O

 

'~
 

l 
• 

~ 
~ 

" £ 
' ' 

I '
 ' 

'°:
: 0

 

• ~ ~ • ~ 

I 
' 

I 
·~ ,g

 
g~

 
••

 
~!

!l
 

~'
 

' 
·~ 

~~
 

~~ 
£ 

g~
 

§S
 

·~
 

• 
•" 

•• 
' 

;l
~ 

,o
 

~~
~ 

~ 
~.

Qg
 

~~
 

~ 
:o

;:
~ 

,, 
~;

~ 
~ 

-'
il

~g
 

"•
 

!:
IQ

=
<

 

~·
 

E
::

:'i
 

( 

w
 

\-
-
-
~
 

,. 

2"
.e

'l>
llN

. 
C

IR
C

U
IT

S
A

B
O

 
l,O

O
C

IV
O

LT
S

 

m
o 

~~
 

~ 
' 

~:
ll

 
~~

 
~ 

~~
 

-· ·~ 
~ 

i 
~~

 
~ 

~ 
;~

 
, 

§ 
~~

 
~ 

; 
! 

"· ~~ ""
 

..., 
"' 

....
. "

 "
 -

"~
 

g 
:1 

i;l 
g 

g 

i i
U

 p
 

~ ~ 
~ 

~ 
g 

:'i 
:'i 

:'i 
~ 

:il 



200A, 120/240V, 112i/3W, SOHz POWER PANEL SCHEDULE "PP1 UTILITY" 

WIRE 
BREAKER C~T I PHASE I C~T BREAKER I WIRE I VA (WATTS) I LOAD SERVED 

POLE TRIP POLE TRIP 

LIGHTNING 
114 2 2 30A #10 ACH2 

ARRESTOR 

1 20A #12 INTERIOR RECEPTS 
ACH1 #10 2 

1 20A #12 SMOKE DETECTOR 

INTERIOR RECEPTS #12 1 20A 9 UPS 
2 125A #1 

TECH PANEL PP2 INTERIOR LIGHTS #12 1 20A 

EXTERIOR RECEPT #12 1 20A TWIST LOCK 
2 20A #12 

RECEPTACLE #1 EXTERIOR LIGHTS #12 1 20A 

WATER HEATER JKT #12 1 20A TWIST LOCK 
2 20A #12 

RECEPTACLE #2 GEN. BATT. CHGR. #12 1 20A 

SPARE 1 20A 20A SPARE 

SPARE 1 20A 20A SPARE 

SPARE 1 20A 20A SPARE 

SPARE 1 20A 20A SPARE 

SPARE 1 20A 20A SPARE 

SPARE 1 20A 20A SPARE 

SPARE 20A 1 20A SPARE 

SPARE 20A 1 20A SPARE 

1 20A SPARE 
BATTERY CHARGER 

SPARE 

TOTAL VOLT AMPS TOTAL VOLT AMPS 

TOTAL AMPS PER LEG 

AMPSX 125% 

"PP1 UTILITY" PANEL SCHEDULE 
N.T.S 

PREPARED BY 

~ 
ETS 
~-~~!!!~~:=: 

3ZZ7 V>£!.LINGTON COURT 
RALEIGH, NC21~15 

o.91!1-7112-2710.t91~1 

-.mw •"11"-,_,,.,_,lulk>na.oom 

PREPARED fO!l 

• SITE NAME 

AHO 
SITE NUMPER 

HP-1382 
PROJECT NUMBER 

;?1..zzaag-01A 

~ 
1432SAMPSONRCI 
600NE, NC 26607 

REV I DATE DETAILS 

0112212021 I CONSTRUCTlON 

01/2i/20:Z1 I CU ENT COMMENTS 

02/1!112021I CUENTCOMMENTS 

0011at2021 I CLIENTCOMMENTS 

IW1ijj2021 I CUENTCOMMENTS 

'° 
" 
" 
" 
" 

I DRA'MI BY AD I CHECKED BY AD I 
SHEETTlTLE 

PANEL SCHEDULE 
"PP1 UTILITY" 

I SHEET I E-3.1 j:~~~~~V:-!11 



200A, 120/240V, 10/3W, 60Hz POWER PANEL SCHEDULE "PP2 TECH" 

BREAKER CKT 
PHASE 

CKT BREAKER 
WIRE 

# # 
POLE TRIP POLE TRIP L 1 

EQUP. RECEPT. #1 #12 1 20A 1 2 1 20A #12 

EQUP. RECEPT. #3 #12 1 20A 4 1 20A #12 

EQUP. RECEPT. #5 #12 1 20A 5 6 1 20A #12 

EQUP. RECEPT. #7 #12 1 20A 7 8 1 20A #12 

EQUP. RECEPT. #9 #12 1 20A 9 1 20A #12 

EQUP. RECEPT. #11 #12 1 20A 11 1 20A #12 

EQUP. RECEPT. #13 #12 1 20A 1 20A #12 

EQUP. RECEPT. #15 #12 1 20A 1 20A #12 

TRANS. CKT #17 #12 1 20A 1 20A #12 

TRANS. CKT #19 #12 1 20A 1 20A #12 

TRANS. CKT #21 #12 1 20A 1 20A #12 

TRANS. CKT #23 #12 1 20A 20A #12 

EOUP. RECEPT. #25 #12 1 20A 20A #12 

EQUP. RECEPT. #27 #12 1 20A 20A #12 

SPARE 1 20A 29 20A 

SPARE 1 20A 31 20A 

SPARE 1 20A 33 20A 

SPARE 1 20A 35 20A 

SPARE 1 20A 20A 

SPARE 

TOTAL VOLT AMPS 

TOTAL AMPS PER LEG 

I 
42.00 I 42.00 

I AMPSX 125% 52.5 

"PP2 TECH" PANEL SCHEDULE 
N.T.S. 

I 

LOAD SERVED 

EQUP. RECEPT. #2 

EQUP. RECEPT. #4 

EQUP RECEPT. #6 

EQUP. RECEPT. #8 

EQUP. RECEPT. #10 

EQUP. RECEPT. #12 

EOUP. RECEPT. #14 

EQUP. RECEPT. #16 

TRANS. CKT #18 

TRANS. CKT #20 

TRANS. CKT #22 

TRANS. CKT #24 

EOUP. RECEPT. #26 

EQUP. RECEPT. #28 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

SPARE 

TOTAL VOLT AMPS 

11 IPREPAREOBY 

~ ,,-.... 

ETS -"CR 'tT'OJ!il9 •. '""'"a 
J7Zl WEUJNGTON COURT 

RALEIGH. NC 27615 
o: ;,9-782-2710, t g1g-435-05!!1 
-·--"'~l<ltlono.ccm 

PREPARED FOR 

11 :", 

11: : 

" " 
" " .. 

• ~ AHO 
Sl~NIJMBER 

HP-1382 
PROJECT NUMBER 
21-~lA 

SITEAOORESS 
1432 SAMPSON RO 
l!OONE. NC 28601 

~~ DETAILS 

·=' CONSTRUCTION 

Ot/2W2021 CLIENT COMMENTS 

02/1'3/2021 CLIENT COMMENTS 

03/1'3/2021 CLIENT COMMENTS 

04/1'3/2021 CLIENT C°"""ENTS 

fDRAVVNBY AD ]cHl!:i:KiiDSv=Ao J 
SHEETTlfiE 

PANEL SCHEDULE 
"PP2TECH" 

SHEEHE-3.2 l~~::e;::~~-~ 



n ~ c :::;
 "' n :I
: m
 

~
g
 

r m
 

QO
 

z 0 ... m
 

~
.
 § m
 .... § ' I ~ 

' 0 z 'l'
 

r z m
 

c >
 

C
l ~ 3 

--
--

--
--

--
-,

 

t@
 

: 
G>

 ,,
 

c-t
- 'i-"

 
:~

~ • ~ • ~ ~ " • ~ ' ;;: 
;:; 

::: 
' ..

 " .
. 

I ~ ~.'
 

~ 
. 

:::; 
'?1 

~ 
~ 

~ 
"'

 

~ 

z ~ i5
 

m
 



8 ;;:
 " 0 c z 0 

' 
G

l 
~~

 
•c

 z 0 z G
l " i;; z "' :i: m
 

~
 

m
 

;t
l 

G
l ~ c z 0 z G
l " i;; z ~ 

G
l 

.!.
 ! ~ 

• 
• 

! 
~ ! '
 I 

G
l 

;t
l 

0 c z 0 z G
l " i;; z "' 

m
 CD 

I! 

j 
0 i 

g 
8 

~ ! i i 

/ 

I '
 ' 

' , ' .
..

 
~ 
' ~

 ' 
' 

n 
!! 

~ 

~ 
; 

8 • 
' 

~ 
~ 

·--
f-

­
\ 

~:l
l 

o
•
 

~~;
ii 

0 

<"
 

~j
 

,.
o

 
i 

5~
 

.,
~t

l 

" 
~'

1i
~~

 
'"

 
,,

. 
1 

' 
~j 

£~
13

~ 

' 
~~

~~
 

~g
~§

~ 
' "

 
!l

l~
(l

::
J"

' 

~ 
~~

~ 
i~

gi
 

E~
~~

~ 
l 

C
l;

>
J
O

-<
 

~.
,(

 
i/

.
)
 

1\ 
\ 

---
-

' 
~~~

---
---

--
,,

 
:_,,

, ..
 

. 
. 

''i
. 

,.
/ 

' 

I ~ ~ 

nm
mt

 mn
nm

Fn
m~

 

0 
~ 

• 
I ~ 

.I
 

"I. "P ~ :
i--1

~ 

! 
~
~
I
~
 

CO
~ 

0 
m

 

"'"
 

i 

~ 
i 

i ~ 
' 

~ 
i 

.
.
 
~ 

<
 

ii 
~11

h1 
I 

II ID
~»)

 



G
l ~ c:
 

z 0 ~ 0 ::;;
 

".i
~ 

"'z
 "' "Q
 

m
 g 0 z ::;; m
 

r r ~ ~- '"' ~ ' I ~ 

' 

1!
1~

 
!~ 

iil
l!l

 

~~
 
~~

 
~
~
 

Q!
 

5 
~~

 
" 

~~
 

~ 
o

• 
~
£
 

' 
'' 

I 
~~

 -, 
' 

' 

~ I
 ' 

, 
G

l 

' ' 
O

;>
J
 

~ 
m

o 
j;! 

c 
_

z
 

~ 
r
o

 
C

l>
-

-
~
 

' ~ 

,,. 

~~
~~

 
~!

;\
~~

 
~
£
~
~
 

O
m

o
 

~~
~ 

i!
J~

O 
"'

~~
 ~! "" Ol

il 

.; 
."' ' '
 ' 

' 
"' 

~ 
!
!
 p

 

I i 
!!

 -!
 

L 
g 

g 
0 c 

0 

~ 
~ 

0 
0 

~
 
~
 

<
l 

11 3 
~ 

~ 
~ 

g ~
 

l 
, 

' ~ 
0 )>

 
0 ::;; m

 
r 0 G

l 

I~ 
;>

J 
•O

 
;;

:c
 

·
z
 

0 z G
l 

0 m
 j;! 

! 
;=

 

~ 
0 i 

~ 
g 

! 

. 

~ 
,? ...... 

. 

~1
1 

~ 
~ ~

~y
'"
"~
 

~ 

Ii 

,, ' 
~I

i:
 

~ 
'• 

' 
'i
 

b 
b 

1) 
in 

i,; 
lf

:l
l"

J 
~
 

11"
' I

 
l:

 

• 
lt

 
~1·

 
1g

 
""'

>I~
 

Id~
)))

< 
l-

~
 i!

 :c
 i 

• 
.0

 

~
~
o
 

·-l' 
"'.

 
ii l-



.,, m
 

z C
l m
 ~ c:
 

~
z
 

-"
'C

J z G
l 

0 ~ ~ ~ c;
i 

/.,
 

;..,
 

~ 
~ i ~ >

 <
 

~
:
 

o
-

0 
0 

0 
0 

~ 
~~

~ 
~ 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0
-0

-0
-0

 

0 
0 

0 
0 

o 
o:

i>
o 

o 
0 

0 
0 

0 

~b
»l
~o
;,
_9
0 -

~-
~ 

I I ;: 
" 

0 
G

l 
' 

m
 ,,

 
~ 

-<
 0

 
)>

 
c:

 
-
z
 

r
o

 
i 

U
>

-
-
Z

 
-

G
l 

' ~ 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0

2
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0

-0
--

0
-0

 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0

-
0

 0
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

;:; 
:: 

' .
 ""

 ..
 . "

 "
 -

0 
~ 

~ 
~ 
' ' 

' 
i i

 u
 p 

~ 
~ 

g 
~ 

~ 
:!i 

~ 
.. ' .

 
11 

I i 
ii

i~
 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 

C
l 0 "O
 

"O
 

m
 ~ ~ 0 "' 

• 
-< 

~ 
rn r G

l 21 c:
 z 0 21 0 n m
 

IJ
l 

;:!!
 

0 G
l ~ ~ G
l ,, 

.o
 

-
c:

 
•
z
 

0 z G
l ~ ,, m
 

r ~ 0 z 

( 

,-"'---
--1

· 
' "

' 1
 "'

 ' 
'i 

I 

I 



~ 
al 

! ! 
• 

' 
~ 

i 
~ ~I 

I J
 i

 
' 

.,, 
i 

i 
~ 

i 
~ 

~ 
~ 

r >
 

z .... m
 

z z 
~
=
=
=
:
;
-
!
-
·
~
V
~
~
1
 

>
 

' 
" 

I 
( 

/ 
/ 

>
 

' 
' 

' 
' 

Il
l 

! 
-
~
'
-
-
-
-
-
r
?
"
~
)
<
,
~
 

:~
~ 

r 
I/

 
I/

 
I/

 
I/

 
m

 
g 

\
_
'
<
:
~
>
:
:
:
:
:
:
:
:
:
i
:
:
:
:
:
·
1
~
1
-
'
•
 

~ 
>

 
1/

 
1/

 
1/

 
1/

 
z 

§ 
~~

~ 
:,';s

; 
}/;

, 
:<?

; 
c 

" 
1, 

1, 
1, 

G
l 

' 
' 

' 
' 

"' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
i 

i 
' 

' 
' 

' 
0 

' 
' 

' 
' 

c:
 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
I 

0 
z 

! 
! 

' 
' 

' 

I 
c 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

z 
I 

' 
' 

' 
' 

• 
G

l 

I 
·i]

 iJ
 ·i

] 
iJ 

1 
V

I 

" 
" :i: m

 
j¥

: 
;;:

 
-· 

~-
>

 
~~

~ 
~~

§!
 

m
£ 

:i:
a'

" 
.... 

o
.
,
 

n 
;p

:::
g 

,g
 

ii~
 

:q
~§

l 
:q

!;
:~

 
~
e
 

'"
g

 
'"•

 
.0

~ 
F 

' 

~j
~ 

~~
~ 

~
~
~
 

-. 
~
-

' 
~;~

11 
.T ~s
l 

-<
 g

 z 
~§

 
:i:

~.<
:: 

~~
~ 

G
l 

!:l
z .. 

• 
>

 
"' 

., 
~~

re
 

8
F

 
z 
~£

 
0 

'"
 

c:
 

~~
 

~r
e:

;;
 

z 
• 

~ 

I 
jlll

31
 

c 
! 

I 
i 

~£
 

' 
~~

~ 
:::;

 
"
0

 

i 
i 

ii~
 

' 
Il

l§
 

I 
$ 

j 
>

0
 

' 
e
~
 

"'
 

n 
m

 
' 

g 
~~

 
g~

 
g 

~ 
;;

1~
;;

 
.... 

' 
~ 

" 
eii

! 
• 

i 
0 

~ 
£ 

~
~
 

~ 
~~

 
i~

 
~g

~ 
>

 
• 

I 
~~

~ 
G

l 
' 

~
~
 

• 
"
>

 
Il

l 
"' 

.,
 

•
o

 
r 

--
~~

 
0 

~·
 

m
 

t~
! 

c:
 

~!
 

G
l "' 

8~
2 

z 
• 

} 
3 

'"
 

0 
~i

~ 
c 

~~
 

~ 
c:

 
·~ 
~ 

g 
~ 

~~
 

z 

1"l1
 

~ 
jl
 

•
o

 

c 
;::

12
g 

"':
:::

:0
 

• 
lg 

z 
~;

!'
~ 

" 
~ 

. 
@
~
 

G
l 

~2
i~

 
0 

o
• 

z 
:•

 
c 

i i
 

z 
•
o

 
m

 
2

1
1

2
"0

M
A

X
 

m
 

~
£
'
~
 
~
~
 

'"
~"

'l
 

§~
 

~ 
' "

 
" 

;i!
O

l!;
;;I

 
~
~
 
~~

1 
~6

 
• 

0 
::i

 
~~

~~
 

;=
 

' 
£ 

0 
' 

' 
~ 

~~
 

F 
g 

•o
o

 

i 
. .

 z
 

~i
~8

 
, 

£ 
~~

 
~
 

0 
>

 
·1

 •
 

I 
' 

! 
.... 

~ 
~~

 
3 

~j
l 

~ 
>

 
! 

• 
m

o 
m

 
O

•
 

,, 
0 

F 
z 

' 
•"

 
.... 

~~
 

m
 

z 
~ 

z >
 

• 
V

I 

J 
I '

 . "
 ' 

' 
! 

" 1
1"' 

I 
n 

p
•
 

,?
~-

·~
JY

. 
~ 

c 
G

l 
' 

H
 ~
u 

! 

• 
/.,

 
m
~
 

~ 

"I· 
w

 
~ 

c:
 

~la
 
. 

:C
~l

>1
~ 

ii fy~
)))'

 
~ ~

 
n 

§ 
-
z
 

iii 
g 

~
 i 

:c
 ~

 
r
e
 

V
I 

-
i 

~ 
~ 

0
0

"
' 
0

"
' 

• 
=
~
 

i i
 

i ~
 

N
"
 

m
 

~ <
?~

\'
" ..

.. ~
" 

' 
~ 

~ 
m

o
 

§ 
~ 

~ 
g 

~ 





AGENDA ITEM 11: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 
B. Proposed Acceptance of Communications Grant on Behalf of NCEM 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Holt will request acceptance of the FY21 HSPG Grant as a subrecipient on behalf of North 
Carolina Emergency Management (NCEM) for improving the School Emergency Response 
Application (SERA) for use in all 100 Counties and the Eastern Band of the Cherokee Indians.  
The grant is in the amount of $144,011.10 and will be executed by NCEM.  
 
Board approval is required to accept the HSPG Grant as a subrecipient on behalf of North Carolina 
Emergency Management (NCEM) in the amount of $144,011.10. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Watauga County Emergency Services 
184 Hodges Gap Rd, Suite D 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone 828-264-4235 

Fax 828-265-7617 
 

Fire Marshal ♦ Emergency Management ♦ Communications 
 

February 7, 2022 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
CC: Deron Geouque, County Manager 

Misty Watson, Finance Director 
Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

 
 
Subject: Acceptance of Communications Grant on behalf of NCEM 
 
 
Board of Commissioners, 
 
Please consider my request to accept the FY21 HSPG Grant as a subrecipient on behalf of North Carolina 
Emergency Management (NCEM) for improving the School Emergency Response Application (SERA) for 
use in all 100 Counties and the Eastern Band of the Cherokee Indians. This grant is in the amount of 
$144,011.10 and will executed by NCEM.  
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Will Holt 
ES Director 

 



 North Carolina Department of Public Safety 

Emergency Management 

 

Roy Cooper, Governor 

Eddie M. Buffaloe Jr., Secretary 

 

William C. Ray, Director 

 

 

 

MAILING ADDRESS 

  

OFFICE LOCATION 
4236 Mail Service Center  1636 Gold Star Drive 
Raleigh NC 27699-4236  Raleigh, NC 27607-3371 

www.readync.org 
www.ncdps.gov 

 Telephone: (919) 825-2500 
Fax: (919) 825-2685 

 An Equal Opportunity employer  

 

Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) 
Fiscal Year 2021 

AL #: 97.067 

Grant#: EMW-2021-SS-00039 

SUBAWARD NOTIFICATION 

Will Holt Period of Performance: October 1, 2021 to February 28, 2024 

Watauga County Project Title: School Emergency Response Application (SERA)   

184 Hodges Gap Rd Total Amount of Award: $144,011.10 

Boone , NC 28607-8736 MOA #: 2140042 

  

  

North Carolina Emergency Management (NCEM) is pleased to inform you that the federal Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 

Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) has been approved for funding. In accordance with the provisions of FY 

2021 HSGP award, NCEM hereby awards to the foregoing subrecipient a grant in the amount shown above.  

 

Payment of funds: The grant shall be effective upon final approval by NCEM of the grant budget and program 

narrative and the execution of the forthcoming Memorandum of Agreement.  Grant funds will be disbursed 

(according to the approved project budget) upon receipt of evidence that funds have been invoiced and products 

received and/or that funds have been expended (i.e., invoices, contracts, itemized expenses, etc.).  

 

Conditions: The subrecipient shall understand and agree that funds will only be expended for those projects 

outlined in the funding amounts as individually listed above. Subrecipient shall also certify the understanding and 

agreement to comply with the general and fiscal terms and conditions of the grant including special conditions; to 

comply with provisions of the 2 CFR 200 and all applicable laws governing these funds and all other federal, state 

and local laws; that all information is correct; that there has been appropriate coordination with affected agencies; 

that subrecipient is duly authorized to commit the applicant to these requirements; that costs incurred prior to grant 

application approval will result in the expenses being absorbed by the subrecipient; and that all agencies involved 

with this project understand that federal funds are limited to the period of performance. Subrecipient must read and 

sign forthcoming Memorandum of Agreement for acceptance of the award. 

 

For projects involving construction or the installation of equipment: 

Prior to funds being expended from this award the subrecipient must complete and submit an Environmental 

Planning and Historical Preservation form to NCEM for approval.  On receipt of the approval letter from NCEM the 

subrecipient may begin to expend grant funds. 

 

Supplanting: The subrecipients confirm that sub-grant funds will not be used to supplant or replace local or state 

funds or other resources that would otherwise have been available for homeland security activities. In compliance 

with that mandate, the subrecipient will certify that the receipt of federal funds through NCEM shall in no way 

supplant or replace state or local funds or other resources that would have been made available for homeland 

security activities.  

 

THIS AWARD IS SUBJECT TO FINAL APPROVAL BY THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY. 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9



 

 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9



       For Official Use Only 

HSGP MOA 2021                  1 of 16 

   
 North Carolina Department of Public Safety 

Emergency Management 

 

Roy Cooper, Governor 

Eddie M. Buffaloe Jr., Secretary 

 

William C. Ray, Director 

 

  Homeland Security Grant Program 
(HSGP) 

Fiscal Year 2021 

AL #: 97.067 

Grant #: EMW-2021-SS-00039 

Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) 

between 

Recipient: Subrecipient: 

State of North Carolina Watauga County 

Department of Public Safety Tax ID/EIN #: 566001816-A 

Emergency Management Duns #: 08-998-8216 
   

MOA #: 2140042 Award amount: $144,011.10             

Period of performance:                         

October 1, 2021 to February 28, 2024                         

                                    

                         

 

1. Purpose 
The purpose of this Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) is to establish responsibilities and procedures to implement 

the terms and conditions of the US Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Homeland Security Grant Program 

(HSGP). More information about HSGP is available at:  https://www.fema.gov/grants/preparedness/homeland-security. 

This MOA is to set forth terms by which the Recipient, State of North Carolina, Department of Public Safety, North 

Carolina Emergency Management (NCEM), shall provide HSGP funding to the Subrecipient to fund projects related to 

Homeland Security Planning, Operations, Equipment purchases, Training and Exercises. For a more detailed description 

of the approved Scope of Work see Attachment 1. 

2. Program Authorization and Regulations 
This MOA is authorized under the provisions of: (1) Section 2002 of the Homeland Security Act of 2002 (Pub. L. No. 

107-296, as amended) (6 U.S.C. § 603 - § 609), (2) Department of Homeland Security Appropriations Act, 2021 (Pub. 

L. No. 116-260), (3) FY 2021 HSGP Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO): https://www.fema.gov/media-

collection/homeland-security-grant-notices-funding-opportunity, (4) applicable FEMA Grant Programs Directorate 

Information Bulletins (see https://www.fema.gov/grants/preparedness/about/informational-bulletins), and (5) NC 

Emergency Management Act, North Carolina General Statutes (N.C.G.S.) Chapter 166A. 

The funds awarded under this grant must be used in compliance with all applicable federal, state, local and tribal laws 

and regulations, including N.C.G.S. §§ 143C-6-21, 143C-6-22, 143C-6-23 and 09 NCAC 03M. By accepting this award, 

the Subrecipient agrees to use these funds in a manner consistent with all applicable laws and regulations. 

3. Projects managed by Recipient (NCEM) on behalf of Subrecipient - Return of Funds   

___  By initialing, Subrecipient requests that Recipient (NCEM on behalf of State of North Carolina) retains all funds 

awarded to Subrecipient under this grant. Subrecipient desires for NCEM and/or its assigns to conduct the activities 

described in Attachment 1 of this MOA on its behalf.  These activities are related to planning, making equipment 

purchases, and conducting training and exercises to improve prevention, protection, preparedness, response, and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9

https://www.fema.gov/grants/preparedness/homeland-security
https://www.fema.gov/media-collection/homeland-security-grant-notices-funding-opportunity
https://www.fema.gov/media-collection/homeland-security-grant-notices-funding-opportunity
https://www.fema.gov/grants/preparedness/about/informational-bulletins


       For Official Use Only 

HSGP MOA 2021                  2 of 16 

recovery capabilities.  Subrecipient relieves itself from the requirements set forth in this MOA with respect to all funds 

returned to Recipient. 

4. Assignment of Funds by Subrecipient to Designated Third Party (not NCEM) 

___ By initialing, Subrecipient agrees to assign all funds awarded under this grant to a designated third party (an 

entity/organization other than NCEM).  Subrecipient and designated third party agree to complete Appendix 6 to this 

MOA, which is to be signed by both parties, designating third party to assume responsibility for all requirements set 

forth in this MOA with respect to all funds assigned to third party. 

5. Compensation 
Recipient agrees that it will pay Subrecipient compensation for eligible services to be rendered by Subrecipient.  

Payment to Subrecipient for expenditures under this MOA will be reimbursed after Subrecipient’s cost report is 

submitted and approved for eligible scope of work activity.  Grant funds will be disbursed (according to the approved 

project budget) upon receipt of evidence that funds have been invoiced, products or services received (i.e., invoices, 

contracts, itemized expenses, etc.), and proof of payment is provided. 

Subrecipients must meet all reimbursement requirements contained herein. Non-compliance may result in denial of 

reimbursement request(s) or revocation of equipment and/or grant funds awarded for this project.  See also paragraph 9 

below regarding compliance. 

6. Funding Eligibility Criteria 
Federal funds administered through Recipient (NCEM on behalf of State of North Carolina) are available to local 

governments to assist in the cost of developing and maintaining a comprehensive homeland security response program.  

Continued HSGP funding is contingent upon completion of all HSGP funding requirements. The following eligibility 

criteria must be adhered to during the entire duration of the grant program: 

A. Recipient/Subrecipient must: 

i. Be established as a state, local, or nonprofit agency by appropriate resolution/ordinance.  

ii. Subrecipient must have a DUNS number, prior to any funds being released. DUNS numbers may be obtained 

from either of the following websites: www.dnb.com or http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform. 

iii. Each subrecipient shall ensure their organization is registered with the System for Award Management (SAM). 

Every applicant is required to have their name, address, DUNS number and EIN up to date in SAM, and the 

DUNS number used in SAM must be the same one used to apply for all FEMA awards. SAM information can 

be found at http://www.sam.gov. Future payments will be contingent on the information provided in SAM; 

therefore it is imperative that the information is correct. 

iv. Complete any procurement(s) and expenditures no later than February 28, 2024. 

v. Provide quarterly progress reports to NCEM Grant Managers (ncemgrants1@ncdps.gov) using the grant 

Quarterly Report form (Attachment 2), by the following dates: January 15th, April 15th, July 15th and October 

15th.  

vi. Submit requests for reimbursement with all required documentation attached.  

B. File Retention (see Attachment 5 “Required Subrecipient File Documentation”):   

Subrecipient is required to maintain records and (invoices) of this grant for three years after termination of the grant, 

or audit if required, or longer where required by law, as outlined below, attached and incorporated by reference.  

Recipient must meet the record retention requirements in 2 CFR 200.334 and must maintain a file for each HSGP 

grant award. However, if any litigation, claim or audit has been initiated prior to the expiration of the three-year 

period and extends beyond the five-year period, the records shall be retained until all litigation, claims or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved. The following files must be available for review by NCEM staff 

for site visits, project closeout and audits: 

i. Resolution/ordinance establishing Subrecipient as a state or local government, or nonprofit organization. 

ii. Award letter, MOA, and supporting appendices.  

iii. Completed appropriate reports with specifications, solicitations, competitive quotes or proposals, basis for 

selection decisions, purchase orders, contracts, invoices and proof(s) of payment. 

iv. Audit findings and corrective action plans. 

v. Equipment inventory records with photo documentation of labeling using labels provided by NCEM. 

7. Conditions 
The Subrecipient certifies that it understands and agrees that funds will only be expended for those projects outlined in 

the funding amounts as individually listed in the FY 2021 HSGP Application packet, incorporated by reference herein. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9

http://www.dnb.com/
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
http://www.sam.gov/
mailto:ncemgrants1@ncdps.gov


       For Official Use Only 

HSGP MOA 2021                  3 of 16 

The Recipient and Subrecipient certify that each understands and agrees to comply with the general and fiscal terms 

and conditions of the grant including special conditions; to comply with provisions of the applicable laws, rules and 

policies governing these funds; that all information is correct; that there has been appropriate coordination with affected 

agencies; that the Recipient is duly authorized to commit the Subrecipient to these requirements; that costs incurred 

prior to grant application approval will result in the expenses being absorbed by the Subrecipient; and that all agencies 

involved with this project understand that all federal funds are limited to the federal period of performance. 

8. Supplantation 
Subrecipients are required to assure and certify that these grant funds will not be used to supplant or replace local or 

state funds or other resources that would otherwise have been available for homeland security activities.   Subrecipients 

may be required to supply documentation certifying that a reduction in non-federal resources occurred for reasons other 

than the receipt or expected receipt of federal funds. 

9. Compliance 
Subrecipient shall comply with applicable federal, state, local and/or tribal statutes, regulations, ordinances, licensing 

requirements, policies, guidelines, reporting requirements, certifications and other regulatory matters for the conduct of 

its business and purchase requirements performed under this MOA.  This includes all requirements contained in the 

applicable FY 2021 HSGP NOFO referenced in paragraph 2 above.  Subrecipient shall be wholly responsible for the 

purchases made under this MOA and for the supervision of its employees and assistants.  

Failure to comply with the specified terms and conditions of this MOA may result in the return of funds and any other 

remedy for noncompliance specified in 2 CFR 200.339, and/or termination of the award per 2 CFR 200.340.  Additional 

conditions may also be placed upon Subrecipient for noncompliance with the specified terms and conditions of this 

MOA, including (but not limited to) additional monitoring.   

10. Responsibilities 
Recipient: 

A. Recipient shall provide funding to Subrecipient to perform the activities as described herein.  

B. Recipient shall conduct a review of the project to ensure that it is in accordance with HSGP requirements.  

C. The federal award date is October 1, 2021. Funds allocated must be encumbered and invoices received by NCEM 

by February 28, 2024. 

D. Recipient shall directly monitor the completion of this project.  

Subrecipient: 

A. This MOA must be signed and returned to NCEM within 45 days after Subrecipient receives notice of this award.  

The grant shall be effective upon return of the executed Grant Award and MOA and final approval by NCEM of 

the grant budget and program narrative. 

B. The Subrecipient shall expend FY 2021 HSGP Grant Program funds in accordance with the FY2021 HSGP NOFO, 

the grant application, and Subaward Notification.  

C. Closeout Reporting Requirements.  In accordance with 2 CFR 200.344, Subrecipient must submit to Recipient, no 

later than 90 calendar days after the end date of the period of performance, all financial, performance, and other 

reports as required by the terms and conditions of the federal award, this MOA and DHS Standard Terms and 

Conditions (Attachment 4), incorporated by reference herein, for the performance of the activities.   

D. Procurement. The Subrecipient shall utilize State of North Carolina and/or local procurement policies and 

procedures for the expenditure of funds, and conform to applicable state and federal law and the standards identified 

in 2 CFR 200.317 – 200.327. Subrecipient must follow procurement procedures and policies as outlined in the 

applicable FY2021 HSGP NOFO, Appendix II of 2 CFR Part 200-Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity 

Contracts Under Federal Awards, and the 2021 FEMA Preparedness Grants Manual.  Subrecipient shall comply 

with all applicable laws, regulations and program guidance.  Subrecipient must comply with the most recent version 

of the funding administrative requirements, cost principles, and audit requirements.  Administrative and 

procurement practices must conform to applicable federal requirements.  A non-exclusive list of regulations 

commonly applicable to DHS grants are listed below, codified in the following guidance: 15 CFR Part 24; Federal 

Acquisition Regulations (FAR), Part 31.2; 28 CFR Part 23 “Criminal Intelligence Systems Operating Policies”; 49 

CFR Part 1520 “Sensitive Security Information”; Public Law 107-296, The Critical Infrastructure Act of 2002; Title 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9

https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_contract-provisions-guide_6-14-2021.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_contract-provisions-guide_6-14-2021.pdf


       For Official Use Only 

HSGP MOA 2021                  4 of 16 

VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 2000 et. seq.; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 

1972, as amended, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et. seq; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. 

794; The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 20 U.S.C. 6101 et. seq.; Cash Management Improvement 

Act (CMIA) and its implementing regulations at 31 CFR Part 205; FEMA Grant Programs Directorate, Grants 

Management Division, Match Guidance; Certifications and Assurances regarding Lobbying 31 U.S.C. 1352, Drug-

Free Workplace Act, as amended, 41 U.S.C. 701 et. seq. and Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace 

Requirements, Debarment and Suspension Executive Orders 12549 and 12689 and certification regarding 

debarment, suspension and other responsibility matters; 28 CFR Parts 66, 67, 69, 70 and 83; and Grant Award and 

Special Conditions documents. 

E. Submit invoice(s) requesting reimbursement for item(s) received to NCEM Grants Management Branch 

(ncemgrants1@ncdps.gov). Recipient will reimburse Subrecipient for eligible costs as outlined in the applicable 

DHS program guidelines and FY2021 HSGP NOFO . Subrecipient must take possession of all purchased equipment 

and receive any grant-eligible service prior to seeking reimbursement from the Recipient. Subrecipient must submit 

request for reimbursement within 60 days of payment of invoice.  Requests for reibursement submitted more than 

60 days after Subrecipient payment of invoice may be denied. 

F. Complete the procurement(s) process not later than February 28, 2024. 

G. Provide quarterly progress reports to NCEM Grant Managers (ncemgrants1@ncdps.gov) using the grant Quarterly 

Report form (Attachment 2), by the following dates: January 15th, April 15th, July 15th and October 15th. 

H. Maintain a grant management filing system as required in this MOA (Attachment 5). 

I. Provide a list at project Closeout to NCEM Grants Management Branch (ncemgrants1@ncdps.gov), DPR Chair, 

and Branch Office of all items purchased through this grant.  This information is to be reported on the “Grant‐
Funded Typed Resource Report” (Attachment 3) or similar spreadsheet.  See FEMA Resource Typing Library Tool 

(RTLT) at https://rtlt.preptoolkit.fema.gov/Public. 

J. Comply with the applicable federal statutes, regulations, policies, guidelines and requirements, reporting 

requirements and certifications as outlined in the FY 2021 HSGP NOFO and Subaward Notification, and DHS 

Standard Terms and Conditions (Attachment 4). 

K. Comply with current federal laws and suspension and debarment regulations pursuant to 2 CFR 200.213 – 200.214, 

2 CFR Part 180 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Guidance, which requires in pertinent part that 

when a non-federal entity enters into a covered transaction with an entity at a lower tier, the non-federal entity must 

verify that the entity is not suspended or debarred or otherwise excluded.  Subrecipient shall be responsible to ensure 

that it has checked the federal System for Awards Management (SAM), https://sam.gov/content/exclusions and the 

State Debarred Vendors Listing, https://ncadmin.nc.gov/documents/nc-debarred-vendors, to verify that contractors 

or subrecipients have not been suspended or debarred from doing business with the federal government.   

L. Ensure that HSGP funds are not used to support hiring sworn public safety officers for the purposes of fulfilling 

traditional public safety duties or to supplant traditional public safety positions and responsibilities.  

M. Non-Supplanting Requirement. See paragraph 8 (Supplantation). 

N. All materials publicizing or resulting from award activities shall contain this acknowledgement: “This project was 

supported by a federal award from the US Department of Homeland Security, Department of Public Safety, North 

Carolina Emergency Management.” Use of the federal program logo must be approved by DHS. Printed as a legend, 

either below or beside the logo shall be the words “Funded by US Department of Homeland Security”. 

O. Subrecipient shall have sole responsibility for the maintenance, insurance, upkeep, and replacement of any 

equipment procured pursuant to this MOA as follows: 

i. Recipient and Subrecipient shall take an initial physical inventory of any equipment.  Equipment is defined as 

tangible, non-expendable property having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost of $5,000 

or more per unit. Subrecipient may have property management guidelines that are more restrictive, requiring a 

unit of equipment with a value of less than $5,000 to be inventoried. If so, such equipment purchased under this 

award allocation shall be included on the report submitted to Recipient.  The grant summary, cost reports with 

backup documentation, certificate of title, and any other Subrecipient reports or inventory reports that include 

information regarding the grant, vendor, invoice number, cost per item, number of items, description, location, 

condition and identification number may be used to meet this requirement. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9

mailto:ncemgrants1@ncdps.gov
mailto:ncemgrants1@ncdps.gov
https://rtlt.preptoolkit.fema.gov/Public
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions
https://sam.gov/content/exclusions
https://ncadmin.nc.gov/documents/nc-debarred-vendors


       For Official Use Only 

HSGP MOA 2021                  5 of 16 

ii. Subrecipient must ensure a control system exists to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss, damage or theft.  

Subrecipient shall be responsible for replacing or repairing equipment which is willfully or negligently lost, 

stolen, damaged, or destroyed.  Any loss, damage or theft of the property must be investigated and fully 

documented, and made part of the official project records. 

iii. Subrecipient or equipment owner must ensure adequate maintenance procedures exist to keep the equipment in 

good condition. 

iv. Disposition Procedures.  Unless otherwise directed by NCEM, DHS and/or FEMA, Subrecipient may dispose 

of the equipment when the original or replacement equipment acquired under the grant award is no longer 

needed for the original project or program, or for other activities currently or previously supported by a federal 

awarding agency.  However, Subrecipient must notify NCEM Grants Management Branch prior to disposing 

of any equipment purchased with grant funds. Items with a fair market value of less than $5,000 may be retained, 

transferred or otherwise disposed of with prior approval of NCEM and in accordance with disposition 

requirements in 2 CFR 200.313. Unless otherwise directed by NCEM, DHS and/or FEMA, items with a current 

per unit standard federal or fair market value in excess of $5,000 may be retained, transferred or otherwise 

disposed of with prior NCEM approval in accordance with disposition requirements in 2 CFR 200.313.  

Subrecipient must provide documentation that includes the method used to determine current fair market value. 

v. Only allowable equipment listed in the Authorized Equipment List (AEL) for HSGP are eligible for purchases 

from this grant. 

P. Property and Equipment. Property and equipment purchased with HSGP funds shall be titled to Subrecipient, unless 

otherwise specified by NCEM, DHS and/or FEMA. Subrecipient shall be responsible for the custody and care of 

any property and equipment purchased with HSGP funds furnished for use in connection with this MOA, and shall 

reimburse the Recipient for any loss or damage to said property until the property is disposed of in accordance with 

HSGP Program requirements.  Recipient will not be held responsible for any property purchased under this MOA.  

Subrecipient must utilize all property and equipment as intended in their project application to NCEM.  Any 

variation from this intended use must be requested in writing and approved by NCEM. Any property and equipment 

purchased under the HSGP grant, including this specific grant award to Subrecipient, is subject to use as a regional 

asset to be utilized and directed by DHS, NCEM, and Domestic Preparedness Region (DPR) partners statewide as 

needed.  

Per 2 CFR 200.313, during the time that equipment is used on the project or program for which it was acquired, 

Subrecipient must also make the equipment available for use on other projects or programs currently or previously 

supported by this or other federal grants, provided that such use will not interfere with the work on the projects or 

program for which it was originally acquired. First preference for other use must be given to other programs or 

projects supported by DHS that financed the equipment and second preference must be given to other programs or 

projects under grants from other federal awarding agencies. NCEM, in conjunction with DHS and DPR partners, 

will determine and direct how equipment will be redeployed. 

Failure to comply with these terms and conditions may result in the return of funds and any other remedy for 

noncompliance specified in 2 CFR 200.339, and/or termination of the award per 2 CFR 200.340.  Additional 

conditions may also be placed upon Subrecipient for noncompliance with the specified terms and conditions of this 

MOA, including (but not limited to) additional monitoring and special conditions placed on future awards per 2 

CFR 200.208. 

Q. Indirect Costs.  No indirect or administrative costs will be charged to this award.  See 2 CFR 200.332(a). 

R. Communications equipment.  In an effort to align communications technologies with current statewide 

communications plans, systems, networks, strategies and emerging technologies, the NCEM Communications 

Branch requires that purchases made with grant funds meet the standards identified in Attachment 6. 

S. The purchase or acquisition of any additional materials, equipment, accessories or supplies, or the provision of any 

training, exercise or work activities beyond that identified in this MOA, shall be the sole responsibility of 

Subrecipient and shall not be reimbursed under this MOA. 

T. Conflicts of Interest.  Per 2 CFR 200.112 and the 2021 FEMA Preparedness Grants Manual, all subrecipients must 

disclose in writing to NCEM, and attempt to avoid, any real or potential conflict of interest that may arise during 

the administration of a federal grant award.   For purposes of this MOA, conflicts of interest may arise in situations 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9

https://www.fema.gov/grants/guidance-tools/authorized-equipment-list
https://www.fema.gov/grants/guidance-tools/authorized-equipment-list
https://www.fema.gov/grants/guidance-tools/authorized-equipment-list
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=de00dfd10f09071c905d0928428a197d&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:2:Subtitle:A:Chapter:II:Part:200:Subpart:D:Subjgrp:28:200.313
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=3164f893d6d82447c92d899285ce22b2&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:2:Subtitle:A:Chapter:II:Part:200:Subpart:D:Subjgrp:28:200.313
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=081a194046528468942c369470c2966a&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:2:Subtitle:A:Chapter:II:Part:200:Subpart:D:Subjgrp:28:200.313


       For Official Use Only 

HSGP MOA 2021                  6 of 16 

where a subrecipient employee, officer, or agent, any members of his or her immediate family, or his or her partner 

has a family relationship, close personal relationship, business relationship, or professional relationship, with 

anybody at DHS, FEMA and/or NCEM involved in the administration of this grant award.   

Per 2 CFR 200.318 and the 2021 FEMA Preparedness Grants Manual, all subrecipients that are non-federal entities 

other than states are required to maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing 

the actions of their employees engaged in the selection, award, and administration of contracts. No employee, 

officer, or agent may participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by a federal award 

if he or she has a real or apparent conflict of interest. Such conflicts of interest would arise when the employee, 

officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization that employs or 

is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal 

benefit from a firm considered for a contract. The officers, employees, and agents of the subrecipient may neither 

solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts. 

However, subrecipients may set standards for situations in which the financial interest is not substantial, or the gift 

is an unsolicited item of nominal value. The standards of conduct must provide for disciplinary actions to be applied 

for violations of such standards by officers, employees, or agents of the subrecipient. All subrecipients must disclose 

in writing to NCEM, and attempt to avoid, any real or potential conflicts of interest with respect to procurement, 

contracting and subcontracting with funds provided under this grant award.  Upon request, subrecipients must also 

provide a copy of their standards of conduct policy covering conflicts of interest with respect to procurement, 

contracting and subcontracting with funds provided under this grant award. 

U. Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP) Compliance. Subrecipients proposing projects that 

could impact the environment, including, but not limited to, the construction of communication towers, 

modification or renovation of existing buildings, structures, and facilities, or new construction including 

replacement of facilities, must participate in the DHS/FEMA EHP review process.  For details see: 

https://www.fema.gov/grants/preparedness/preparedness-grants-ehp-compliance.  

V. Subrecipient must have an acceptable local travel regulation plan or accept the state travel regulations.  Refer to 2 

CFR 200.475 for travel costs. 

11. Funding   
All terms and conditions of this MOA are dependent upon and subject to the allocation of funds from DHS and NCEM 

for the purposes set forth, and the MOA shall automatically terminate if funds cease to be available. 

Allowable costs shall be determined in accordance with applicable DHS Program Guidelines, which include, but may 

not be limited to, the FY2021 HSGP NOFO, 2 CFR 200 Subpart E, Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR) Part 31.2, 

OMB Circulars A-21, and applicable DHS and FEMA financial management guidance available at 

https://www.dhs.gov/dhs-grants and https://www.fema.gov/grants/guidance-tools.  Allowable costs are also subject to 

the approval of the State Administrative Agent for the State of North Carolina, the Secretary of the Department of Public 

Safety.  

12. Taxes   
Subrecipient shall be considered to be an independent subrecipient and as such shall be responsible for ALL taxes. 

There shall be no reimbursement for taxes incurred by the subrecipient under this grant. 

13. Warranty   
As an independent subrecipient, the Subrecipient will hold Recipient harmless for any liability and personal injury that 

may occur from or in connection with the performance of this MOA to the extent permitted by the North Carolina Tort 

Claims Act.  Nothing in this MOA, express or implied, is intended to confer on any other person any rights or remedies 

in or by reason of this MOA.  This MOA does not give any person or entity other than the parties hereto any legal or 

equitable claim, right or remedy. This MOA is intended for the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties hereto.  This 

MOA is not made for the benefit of any third person or persons.  No third party may enforce any part of this MOA or 

shall have any rights hereunder.  This MOA does not create, and shall not be construed as creating, any rights 

enforceable by any person not a party to this MOA.  Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of the sovereign 

immunity of the State of North Carolina. 

14.  State of North Carolina Reporting Requirements per NCGS 143C-6-23 and 09 NCAC 03M   

North Carolina state law (N.C.G.S. 143C-6-23 and 09 NCAC 03M) requires every non-state entity (including non-profit 

organizations, counties and local governments) that receives state or federal pass-through grant funds from state 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9

https://www.fema.gov/grants/preparedness/preparedness-grants-ehp-compliance
https://www.dhs.gov/dhs-grants
https://www.fema.gov/grants/guidance-tools
https://www.ncleg.net/enactedlegislation/statutes/html/bysection/chapter_143c/gs_143c-6-23.html
http://ncrules.state.nc.us/ncac/title%2009%20-%20governor%20and%20lt.%20governor/chapter%2003%20-%20state%20budget%20and%20management/subchapter%20m/subchapter%20m%20rules.pdf
https://www.ncleg.net/enactedlegislation/statutes/html/bysection/chapter_143c/gs_143c-1-1.html


       For Official Use Only 

HSGP MOA 2021                  7 of 16 

agencies to file annual reports on how those grant funds were used no later than three months after the end of the non-

state entity’s fiscal year.  

Refer to “State Grant Compliance Reporting Forms” on the following website for instructions and applicable forms 

for subrecipients to meet these requirements: https://www.ncdps.gov/our-organization/emergency-

management/emergency-management-grants/grants-management-compliance . 

Level I (Less than $25,000)  

A grantee receiving less than $25,000 (combined) in state or federal pass through funds must submit:  

 Certification Form.  

 State Grants Compliance Reporting for Receipts of Less than $25,000.  

 Level I form and reporting instructions are available on the above website.  

Level II ($25,000 - $499,999)  

A grantee that receives between $25,000 - $499,999 (combined) in state or federal pass-through funding must submit:  

 Certification Form.  

 State Grants Compliance Reporting for Receipts of $25,000 or More. 

 Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures.  

 Program Activities and Accomplishments Reports.  

 Level II form and reporting instructions are available on the above website.  

Level III ($500,000 - $749,999)  

A grantee that receives a combined $500,000 or more in state funding or federal pass-through funding must submit:  

 Certification Form.  

 State Grants Compliance Reporting for Receipts of $25,000 or More.  

 Program Activities and Accomplishments Reports. 

 Level III form and reporting instructions are available on the above website.   

 Submit within nine months of the grantee's fiscal year end: Submit to DPS Internal Audit a single audit prepared 

and completed in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards.  See paragraph 15 below 

for audits. 

Level III Continued ($750,000+)  

A grantee that receives a combined $750,000 or more in funding from all federal funding sources, even those passed 

through a state agency must submit:  

 Certification Form.  

 State Grants Compliance Reporting for Receipts of $25,000 or More.  

 Program Activities and Accomplishments Reports. 

 Level III form and reporting instructions are available on the above website.   

 Submit within nine months of the grantee's fiscal year end:  

o Submit to DPS Internal Audit a single audit prepared and completed in accordance with Generally Accepted 

Government Auditing Standards.  

o Post the single audit to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/).  

o Make copies of the single audit available to the public. See paragraph 15 below for audits. 

15. Audit Requirements  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9

https://www.ncdps.gov/our-organization/emergency-management/emergency-management-grants/grants-management-compliance
https://www.ncdps.gov/our-organization/emergency-management/emergency-management-grants/grants-management-compliance
https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/


       For Official Use Only 

HSGP MOA 2021                  8 of 16 

For all federal grant programs, Subrecipient is responsible for obtaining audits in accordance with 2 CFR 200 Subpart 

F. 

Per 09 NCAC 03M .0205, a subrecipient that receives a combined $500,000 or more in North Carolina state 

funding or federal funding passed through a state agency must within 9 months of the subrecipient's fiscal year 

end submit to DPS Internal Audit (AuditGrantsReport@ncdps.gov) a single audit prepared and completed in 

accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS): https://www.gao.gov/yellowbook. 

Per 2 CFR 200.501, a subrecipient that receives a combined $750,000 or more in funding from all federal funding 

sources, even those passed through a state agency, must have a single audit conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 

200.514 and GAGAS within 9 months of Subrecipient’s fiscal year end.  Subrecipient must:  

A. Post the single audit conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200.514 and GAGAS to the Federal Audit 

Clearinghouse https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/. 

B. Submit to DPS Internal Audit (AuditGrantsReport@ncdps.gov) a single audit prepared and completed in 

accordance with GAGAS.  This can, at the option of Subrecipient, be the same single audit submitted to the 

Federal Audit Clearinghouse in paragraph 15.A. above. 

C. Make copies of the single audit available to the public. 

16. Subrecipient Monitoring 

See Attachment 7 for subrecipient monitoring. 

17. Points of Contact 

To provide consistent and effective communication between Subrecipient and the NCEM, each party shall appoint a 

Principal Representative(s) to serve as its central point of contact responsible for coordinating and implementing this 

MOA.  The NCEM contact shall be, Assistant Director - Administration,  the NCEM Grants Management Branch Staff, 

and the NCEM Field Branch Staff.  The Subrecipient point of contact shall be the person designated by the Subrecipient.  

All confidential information of either party disclosed to the other party in connection with the services provided 

hereunder will be treated by the receiving party as confidential and restricted in its use to only those uses contemplated 

by the terms of this MOA.  Any information to be treated as confidential must be clearly marked as confidential prior 

to transmittal to the other party.  Neither party shall disclose to third parties, the other party's confidential information 

without written authorization to do so from the other party.  Specifically excluded from such confidential treatment 

shall be information that:  

A. As of the date of disclosure and/or delivery, is already known to the party receiving such information.   

B. Is or becomes part of the public domain, through no fault of the receiving party.  

C. Is lawfully disclosed to the receiving party by a third party who is not obligated to retain such information in 

confidence.  

D. Is independently developed at the receiving party by someone not privy to the confidential information. 

18. Public Records Access  
While this information under federal control is subject to requests made pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act 

(FOIA), 5 U.S.C. §552 et. seq., all determinations concerning the release of information of this nature are made on a 

case-by-case basis by the FEMA FOIA Office. This MOA may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Act, 

Chapter 132 of the North Carolina General Statutes. 

19. Contracting/Subcontracting   
If Subrecipient contracts/subcontracts any or all purchases or services under this MOA, then Subrecipient agrees to 

include in the contract/subcontract that the contractor/subcontractor is bound by the terms and conditions of this MOA.  

Subrecipient and any contractor/subcontractor agree to include in the contract/subcontract that the 

contractor/subcontractor shall hold NCEM harmless against all claims of whatever nature arising out of the 

contractors/subcontractor's performance of work under this MOA.  If Subrecipient contracts/subcontracts any or all 

purchases or services required under this MOA, a copy of the executed contract/subcontract agreement must be 

forwarded to NCEM. A contractual arrangement shall in no way relieve Subrecipient of its responsibilities to ensure 

that all funds issued pursuant to this grant be administered in accordance with all state and federal requirements.  

Subrecipient is bound by all special conditions of this grant award as set out in the grant application  and the grant award 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9

mailto:AuditGrantsReport@ncdps.gov
https://www.gao.gov/yellowbook
https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/
mailto:AuditGrantsReport@ncdps.gov


       For Official Use Only 

HSGP MOA 2021                  9 of 16 

letter Subaward Agreement incorporated by reference herein, as well as all terms, conditions and restrictions of the 

FY2021 HSGP NOFO  referenced herein. 

20. Situs   
This MOA shall be governed by the laws of North Carolina and any claim for breach or enforcement shall be filed in 

State Court in Wake County, North Carolina. 

21. Antitrust Laws   
All signatories of this MOA will comply with all applicable state and federal antitrust laws. 

22. Other Provisions/Severability  
Nothing in this MOA is intended to conflict with current federal, state, local, or tribal laws or regulations. If a term of 

this MOA is inconsistent with such authority, then that term shall be invalid, but the remaining terms and conditions of 

this MOA shall remain in full force and effect. 

23. Entire Agreement   
This MOA and any annexes, exhibits and amendments annexed hereto and any documents incorporated specifically by 

reference represent the entire agreement between the parties and supersede all prior oral and written statements or 

agreements.  

24. Modification  
This MOA may be amended only by written amendments duly executed by the Recipient and the Subrecipient. 

25. Prohibition on purchasing certain telecommunications - John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for 

Fiscal Year 2019 – Public Law 115-232, section 889 – 2 CFR 200.16 

Effective August 13, 2020, FEMA recipients and subrecipients may not use any FEMA funds under open or new awards 

to:  

A. Procure or obtain any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services 

as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology of any system.  

B. Enter into, extend, or renew a contract to procure or obtain any equipment, system, or service that uses covered 

telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical 

technology of any system. 

C. Enter into, extend, or renew contracts with entities that use covered telecommunications equipment or services as 

a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. 

Replacement Equipment and Services  
FEMA grant funding may be permitted to procure replacement equipment and services impacted by this prohibition. 

Recipients and subrecipients should refer to applicable program guidance or contact the applicable program office to 

determine if replacement equipment or services is eligible under that program.  

Definitions  
Per section 889(f)(2)-(3) of the FY 2019 NDAA, covered telecommunications equipment or services means: 

A. Telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any 

subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  

B. For the purpose of public safety, security of Government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical 

infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment 

produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua 

Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). 

C. Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.  

Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the 

Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau 

of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the People’s 

Republic of China. 

FEMA Policy #405-143-1 

Refer to FEMA Policy #405-143-1 for specific guidance: 

https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_prohibitions-expending-fema-award-funds-covered-

telecommunications-equipment-services.pdf 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9

https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_prohibitions-expending-fema-award-funds-covered-telecommunications-equipment-services.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_prohibitions-expending-fema-award-funds-covered-telecommunications-equipment-services.pdf


       For Official Use Only 

HSGP MOA 2021                  10 of 16 

26. Certification of eligibility--Under the Iran Divestment Act 

Pursuant to G.S. 147-86.60, any company identified as engaging in investment activities in Iran, determined by 

appearing on the Final Divestment List created by the State Treasurer pursuant to G.S, 147-86.58, is ineligible to 

contract with the State of North Carolina or any political subdivision of the state. The Iran Divestment Act of 2015, 

G.S. 147-86.55 et seq. requires that each vendor, prior to contracting with the state certifies, and the undersigned on 

behalf of the Vendor does hereby certify, to the following: 

A. That the vendor is not identified on the Final Divestment List of entities that the State Treasurer has determined 

engages in investment activities in Iran. 

B. That the vendor shall not utilize on any contract with the state agency any subcontractor that is identified on the 

Final Divestment List. 

C. That the undersigned is authorized by the Vendor to make this Certification. 

The State Treasurer’s Final Iran Divestment List can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at the address: 

https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules. 

Further, pursuant to G.S. 147-86.82, any company identified as boycotting Israel, determined by appearing on the Final 

Divestment List created by the State Treasurer pursuant to G.S 147-86.81, is ineligible to contract with the State of 

North Carolina or any political subdivision of the State.  The State Treasurer’s Final Companies Boycotting Israel List 

can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at the address: https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-

treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules. 

27. Termination  
The terms of this MOA, as modified with the consent of all parties, will remain in effect until February 28, 2024. Either 

party upon thirty days advance written notice to the other party may terminate this MOA.  Upon approval by DHS, 

FEMA and the issuance of the Grant Adjustment Notice, if this MOA is extended, the termination date for the extension 

will be the date listed in the applicable DHS, Grant Adjustment Notice, incorporated by reference herein. If DHS 

suspends or terminates funding in accordance with 2 CFR 200.340 and the 2021 HSGP NOFO, incorporated by 

reference herein, the Subrecipient shall reimburse NCEM for said property and/or expenses.  

28. Scope of Work 

Subrecipient shall implement the HSGP project summarized below and as described in the approved project application. 

That application is hereby incorporated by reference into this MOA:  

A. Scope of Work Summary 

i. Completed appropriate report forms with invoices and proof(s) of payment. 

ii. Audit findings and corrective action plans.  

iii. Equipment inventory records with photo documentation of labeling. 

B. Documentation to be provided throughout the Period of Performance of the grant: 

i. Quarterly project progress reports. 

ii. Subrecipient involved legal action that pertains to Planning, Organization, Training, Exercise and 

Equipment purchased with HSGP. 

iii. After-action report from exercise in accordance with Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program 

Doctrine (HSEEP).  

iv. Training course roster and description. 

v. Any other documentation that would be pertinent. 

vi. All legible and complete invoices and receipts detailing the expenses associated with the project. Receipts 

must contain the following information:  

 Name and address of the vendor or establishment providing the product or service. 

 Vendor/Payee invoice number, account number, and any other unique meaningful identifying number 

 Date the product or service was provided. 

 Itemized description of all products or services. 

 Unit price of products or services (if applicable). 

 Total amount charged. 

vii. Proof of payment of expenses associated with the project. 

29. Lobbying Prohibition 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9

https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules
https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules
https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules


       For Official Use Only 

HSGP MOA 2021                  11 of 16 

The Subrecipient certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that: 

A. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person or 

employee of any state or federal agency, a member of the NC General Assembly, a Member of Congress, an officer 

or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal 

contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative 

agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, 

loan, or cooperative agreement. 

B. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 

attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 

Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or 

cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to 

Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.  

C. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-

awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 

agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.  

This certification is a material representative of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or 

entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 

section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty 

of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.  

30. Assurance of Compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 - procurement 
During the performance of this contract, the subrecipient, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest (hereinafter 

referred to as the “subrecipient”) agrees as follows: 

A. Compliance with Regulations: The subrecipient shall comply with the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination in 

Federally-Assisted Programs of the 2 CFR 200.300 and North Carolina regulation as they may be amended from 

time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a 

part of this contract.  

B. Nondiscrimination:  The subrecipient, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not 

discriminate on the grounds of race, sex, or national origin in the selection and retention of subrecipients, including 

procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The subrecipient shall not participate either directly or indirectly 

in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the 

contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.  

C. Solicitation for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations either by 

competitive bidding or negotiation made by the subrecipient for work to be performed under a subcontract, 

including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subrecipient or supplier shall be notified 

by the subrecipient of the subrecipients obligations under this contract and the Regulations relative to 

nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin.  

D. Information and Reports: The subrecipient shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations or 

directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of 

information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Recipient or the Research and Special Programs 

Administration (RSPA) to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders and instructions. 

Where any information required of a subrecipient is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to 

furnish this information the subrecipient shall so certify to the Recipient or the Research and Special Programs 

Administration as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain such information.  

E. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the subrecipients noncompliance with nondiscrimination provisions 

of this contract, the Recipient shall impose contract sanctions as it or the Research and Special Programs 

Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:  

i. Withholding of payments to the subrecipient under the contract until the subrecipient complies. 

ii. Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.  

F. Incorporation of Provisions: The subrecipient shall include the provisions of every subcontract, including 

procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9



       For Official Use Only 

HSGP MOA 2021                  12 of 16 

thereto. The contract shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurements as the Recipient or the 

Research and Special Programs Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including 

sanctions for noncompliance: Provide, however, that in the event a subrecipient becomes involved in, or is 

threatened with, litigation with a subcontract or supplier as a result of such direction, the subrecipient may request 

the Recipient to enter into such litigation to protect the of the Recipient and, in addition the subrecipient may request 

the United States to enter such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.  

31. Assurance of Compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 - regulations 
Subrecipient hereby agrees that as a condition to receiving any federal financial assistance from the DHS it will comply 

with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d-42 U.S.C. 2000d-4 (hereinafter referred to 

as the Act) and all requirements imposed by or pursuant to 2 CFR 200.300 , Nondiscrimination in FederallyAssisted 

Programs of the DHS - Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (hereinafter referred to as the 

Regulations) and other pertinent directives, to the end that in accordance with the Act, Regulations, and other pertinent 

directives, no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, sex or national origin, be excluded from 

participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise discrimination under any program or activity for which the 

Subrecipient receives federal financial assistance from the DHS, and HEREBY GIVES ASSURANCE THAT it will 

promptly take any measures necessary to effectuate this MOA. This assurance is required by subsection 21.7(a) (1) of 

the Regulations. More specifically and without limiting the above general assurance, the Subrecipient hereby gives the 

following specific assurance with respect to the project: 

A. Agrees that each "program" and each "facility" as defined in subsections 21.23(e) and 21.23(b) of the Regulations, 

will be (with regard to a "program") conducted, or will be (with regard to ("facility") operated in compliance with 

all requirements imposed by, or pursuant to, the Regulations. 

B. Insert the following notification in all solicitations for bids for work or material subject to the Regulations and, in 

adapted form in all proposals for negotiated agreements: 

In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and 2 

CFR 200.300 issued pursuant to such Act, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively insure that in 

regard to any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, minority, business enterprises will be 

afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on 

the grounds of race, color, sex or national origin in consideration for an award. 

C. Insert the clauses of this MOA in every contract subject to the Act and the Regulations. 

D. This assurance obligates the Recipient for the period during which federal financial assistance is extended to the 

project. 

E. Provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the Secretary of DHS or the official to 

whom he delegates specific authority to give reasonable guarantee that is, other recipients, subrecipients, 

contractors, subcontractors, transferees, successors in interest, and other participants of federal financial assistance 

under such program will comply with all requirements imposed or pursuant to the Act, the Regulations and this 

assurance. 

F. Agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to any matter arising under the 

Act, and Regulations, and this assurance. 

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all federal grants, loans, 

contracts, property, discounts or other federal financial assistance extended after the date hereof to the Recipient by 

the DHS and is binding on it, other recipients, subrecipients, contractors, subcontractors, transferees, successors in 

interest and other participants in the DHS Program. The person or persons whose signatures appear below are 

authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the recipients. 

32. Assurance of Compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 – deeds, licenses, permits, leases 
The following clauses shall be included in all deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar instruments entered into by 

Subrecipient  executed in expending these grant funds: 

A. The [Subrecipient, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc., as appropriate] for itself, herself/himself, his/her heirs, personal 

representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and 

agree [in the case of deeds and leases add "as a covenant running with the land"] that in the event facilities are 

constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the said property described in this [deed, license, lease, permit, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9



       For Official Use Only 

HSGP MOA 2021                  13 of 16 

etc.] for a purpose for which a DHS program or activity is extended or for another purpose involving the provision 

of similar services or benefits, the Subrecipient [licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.] shall maintain and operate such 

facilities and services in compliance with all other requirements imposed pursuant to 2 CFR 200.300 and as said 

Regulations may be amended. 

B. That in the event of breach of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Subrecipient shall have the right to terminate 

the [license, lease, permit, etc.] and to re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the same 

as if said [licenses, lease, permit, etc.] had never been made or issued. 

C. That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Subrecipient  shall have the right to 

re-enter said lands and facilities thereon, and the above-described lands and facilities shall thereupon revert to and 

vest in and become the absolute property of Subrecipient  and its assigns. 

The following shall be included in all deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar agreements entered into by 

Subrecipient: 

A. The [Subrecipient, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc., as appropriate] for herself/himself, his/her personal 

representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and 

agree [in case of deeds, and leases add "as a covenant running with the land"] that (1) no person on the grounds of 

race, color, sex, or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise 

subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any improvements on, over or 

under such land and the furnishing services thereon, no person on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin 

shall be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination, 

and (3) that the [Subrecipient, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.] shall use the premises in compliance with all other 

requirements imposed by or pursuant 2 CFR 200.300,  Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and 

as said Regulations may be amended. 

B. That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants,  Subrecipient  shall have the right to 

terminate the [license, lease, permit, etc.] and to re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold 

the same as if said [license, lease, permit, etc.] had never been made or issued. 

C. That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants,  Subrecipient shall have the right to 

re-enter said land and facilities thereon, and the above described lands and facilities shall thereupon revert to and 

vest in and become the absolute property of Subrecipient  and its assigns. 

  * Reverted clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary in order 

to effectuate the purpose of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 

33. Assurance of Compliance with Privacy Act 
The Subrecipient agrees: 

A. To comply with the provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. §552A and regulations adopted there under, 

when performance under the program involves the design, development, or operation of any system or records on 

individuals to be operated by the Subrecipient, its third-party subrecipients, contractors, or their employees to 

accomplish a DHS function.  

B. To notify DHS when the Subrecipient or any of its third-party contractors, subcontractors, subrecipients, or their 

employees anticipate a system of records on behalf of DHS in order to implement the program, if such system 

contains information about individuals name or other identifier assigned to the individual. A system of records 

subject to the Act may not be used in the performance of this MOA until the necessary and applicable approval and 

publication requirements have been met.  

C. To include in every solicitation and in every third-party contract, sub-grant, and when the performance of work, 

under that proposed third-party contract, sub-grant, or sub-agreement may involve the design, development, or 

operation of a system of records on individuals to be operated under that third-party contract, sub grant, or to 

accomplish a DHS function, a Privacy Act notification informing the third party contractor, or subrecipient, that it 

will be required to design, develop, or operate a system of records on individuals to accomplish a DHS function 

subject to the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. §552a, and applicable DHS regulations, and that a violation of the Act 

may involve the imposition of  criminal penalties; and 

D. To include the text of Sections 30 parts A through C in all third-party contracts, and sub grants under which work 

for this MOA is performed or which is awarded pursuant to this MOA or which may involve the design, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9



       For Official Use Only 

HSGP MOA 2021                  14 of 16 

development, or operation of a system of records on behalf of the DHS.  

34. Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements (Subrecipients Other Than Individuals)  

This certification is required by the regulations implementing the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988. The regulations, 

published in the January 31, 1989 Federal Register, require certification by subrecipient, prior to award, that they will 

maintain a drug-free workplace. The certification set out below is a material representation of the act upon which 

reliance will be placed when the agency determines to award the grant. False certification or violation of the certification 

shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension of 

debarment, (See 2 CFR 200.415).  Subrecipient certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace 

by: 

A. Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession or use 

of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Subrecipient’s workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken 

against employees for violation of such prohibition. 

B. Establish a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about: 

i. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace. 

ii. The Subrecipient’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace. 

iii. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs. 

iv. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace. 

C. Require that each employee engaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement required by 

paragraph A. . 

D. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (A) that, as a condition of employment under the 

grant, the employee will: 

i. Abide by the terms of the statement. 

ii. Notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in the workplace no later 

than five days after such conviction. 

E. Notifying the agency within ten days after receiving notice under subparagraph (D) (ii), from an employee or 

otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. 

F. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 days of receiving notice under subparagraph (D)(ii), with respect to 

any employee who is convicted: 

i. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination. 

ii. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program 

approved for such purpose by federal, state, local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency. 

G. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of paragraphs 

(A), (B), (C), (D), (E), and (F). 

35. Execution and Effective Date 

This grant shall become effective upon return of this original Grant Award and MOA, properly executed on behalf of 

the Subrecipient, to NCEM and will become binding upon execution of all parties to this MOA.  The terms of this MOA 

will become effective October 1, 2021. The last signature shall be that of Eddie M. Buffaloe Jr., Secretary for the North 

Carolina Department of Public Safety.  

36. Term of this Agreement 

This MOA shall be in effect from October 1, 2021 to February 28, 2024. 

37.  Statement of Assurances 

Subrecipient must complete either Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Standard Form 424B Assurances – Non-

Construction Programs, or OMB Standard Form 424D Assurances – Construction Programs, or both, as applicable.  

A. Subrecipients that only have construction work and do not have any non-construction work need only submit the 

construction form (i.e., SF-424D) and not the non-construction form (i.e., SF-424B), and vice versa. However, 

subrecipients who have both construction and non-construction work under this grant must submit both the 

construction and non-construction forms.   

B. Subrecipient must complete the appropriate form(s) and submit to NCEM Grants Management Branch 

(ncemgrants1@ncdps.gov) upon execution of this MOA.  Subrecipient must still complete the appropriate form(s) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F0C8F8-F5F2-48F6-BD1C-6047B9AA8DD9

https://clintonwhitehouse5.archives.gov/media/pdf/sf424b.pdf
https://clintonwhitehouse5.archives.gov/media/pdf/sf424b.pdf
https://clintonwhitehouse5.archives.gov/media/pdf/sf424d.pdf
mailto:ncemgrants1@ncdps.gov


https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions






https://www.sam.gov/
https://www.irs.gov/charities-non-profits/charitable-organizations/exemption-requirements-section-501c3-organizations
https://www.irs.gov/charities-non-profits/charitable-organizations/exemption-requirements-section-501c3-organizations










https://www.fema.gov/core-capabilities
https://www.fema.gov/core-capabilities


file:///C:/Users/jcox/Documents/North%20Carolina%20Emergency%20Management6%20temp.docx%23hsgp1_fundingamount






https://www.fema.gov/core-capabilities
https://www.fema.gov/core-capabilities
file:///C:/Users/jcox/Documents/North%20Carolina%20Emergency%20Management6%20temp.docx%23hsgp1_fundingamount






https://www.fema.gov/core-capabilities
https://www.fema.gov/core-capabilities
file:///C:/Users/jcox/Documents/North%20Carolina%20Emergency%20Management6%20temp.docx%23hsgp1_fundingamount





































































	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the February 15, 2022, Agenda
	Watauga County Public Library Annual Report
	Watauga County Schools Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and Lottery Funds Request
	Sheriff’s Office Matters
	A.  Mobile Radio Purchase Request
	B.  Rada Purchase Request

	Project on Aging Matters
	A.  Additional Funds and Revised Allocation of FY 22 H&CCBG Funds
	B.  Acceptance of the FY 2022 MIPPA Grant/Contract

	Tax Matters
	A.  Collections Report
	B.  Refunds and Releases
	C.  Tax Lien Report

	Social Services Low Income Energy Assistance Program (LIEAP) Funds
	Finance Matters
	A.  Proposed Audit Contract for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022
	B.  Proposed OSBM Conflict of Interest Policy
	C.  Proposed Grant Project Ordinance Establishement and Maintenance of OSBM State Capital Infrastructure Fund

	Emergency Services Matters
	A.  Proposed Sampson Tower Lease & VIPER Lease
	B. Proposed Acceptance of Communications Grant on Behalf of NCEM

	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Appointment of Finance Director
	B.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session
	Possible Action After Closed Session



